CENIRAL
MIDLANDS

Council of Governments

CMCOG Meeting Notice

Zoom Meeting (virtual only)

12:00PM
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89222482113?pwd=TTZBTHAVJIAAWERZQ3pabG5HWDV0OUT09

Meeting ID: 892 2248 2113 & Passcode: 7558354 Dial-In Number (929) 205-6099

DATE: January 21,2022
TO: CMCOG Board of Directors

FROM: Foster Senn, CMCOG Board Chair

Please be advised that the next meeting of the Central Midlands Council of
Governments Board of Directors will be held on Thursday, January 27, 2022
at12:00 PM.

This is a virtual meeting only (no in-person). Please join the meeting 10
minutes prior to the 12:00PM so we can start promptly on time.

We need a quorum to conduct business, so it is very important for you to plan
to attend each meeting. The meeting packet has been mailed and emailed to you.

I thank you for your time and service to the Central Midlands Council of
Governments.

Enclosures

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina‘s Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 ¢ (803) 376-5390 ¢ FAX (803) 376-5394 ¢ Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89222482113?pwd=TTZBTHAvdlA4WERZQ3pabG5HWDV0UT09

CENTRAL
MIDLANDS

Council of Governments

Board of Directors Meeting
Thursday, January 27, 2022 ¢ 12:00 p.m.
Central Midlands Council of Governments
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210
Virtual (Only) - Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89222482113?pwd=TTZBTHAVdAIAAWERZQ3pabG5HWDV0OUT09

Meeting ID: 892 2248 2113 & Passcode: 7558354 Dial-In Number (929) 205-6099

OVERALL AGENDA
A. Call to Order and Introductions Foster Senn, Chair
1. Determination of a Quorum
2. Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda
3. Invocation
4. Chairman’s Introduction Foster Senn
e Good News from CMCOG, Around the Region Benjamin Mauldin

B. Consent Agenda

1. Approval of the December 9, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes (Enclosure 1)
2. CMCOG - COATS MPO 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan (Enclosure 2)

C. Regular Agenda

1. Briefing on Financial and Compliance Report for FY 2020 (Enclosure 3) Petula Hendley

2. CMCOG Authorization of Section 5307 Funds (Enclosure 4) Reginald Simmons
3. CMCOG Authorization of Section 5339 Funds (Enclosure 5) Reginald Simmons
4. COATS MPO Congestion Management Plan (Enclosure 6) Reginald Simmons
5. 208 Plan Amendment: Eastover WWTP Expansion to 1.2 MGD (Enclosure 7) Gregory Sprouse

D. Announcements / Committee or Staff Reports / Correspondences
1. Executive Director’s Report Benjamin Mauldin

pa
O
=
<
p=
o
O
LL
Z

E. Old/New Business

F. Other Business

G. Adjourn
REMINDER: The next CMCOG Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, February 24, 2022
Note: Full Agenda packets can be found on the CMCOG website at www.cmcog.org.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89222482113?pwd=TTZBTHAvdlA4WERZQ3pabG5HWDV0UT09
http://www.cmcog.org/

CENTRAL
MIDLANDS

Council of Governments

Board of Directors Meeting of the
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Thursday, December 9, 2021 ¢ 12:00 p.m. ¢ Midlands Technical College — Airport Campus

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Vina Abrams, Newberry County

Moses Bell, Fairfield County Council

Todd Beasley, Newberry County

Larry Brigham, Lexington County

Julian Burns, Kershaw County

David Busby, Lexington County

Kathy Condom, Town of Irmo

Rebecca Connelly, Lexington County

Glen Conwell, Lexington County Council
Kyle Crager, Fairfield County

Smokey Davis, Lexington County

William DePass, City of Columbia

Darrell Hudson, Lexington County

Robert Liming, City of Columbia

Paul Livingston, Richland County Council
Walt McLeod, Newberry County

John McMeekin, Mayor, Town of Winnsboro
Joe Mergo, Lexington County

Stephanie Ocain, Richland County

Michelle Ransom, COMET for Leroy Dechamps
Dr. Ron Rhames, Midlands Technical College
Foster Senn, Mayor, City of Newberry
William Simon, Richland County

Lynn Sturkie, Lexington County Administrator

GUESTS PRESENT:

Jackie Bowers, SCDOT

Kimberly Fontenez, Total Employee Sourcing
LLC

Fred Frank, WSP

Bill Jordan, AECOM

Darren Ledbetter

Holland Ledger, Lexington County
Christina Lewis, SCDOT

Jeremy Knight

Yolanda Morris, FHWA

STAFFE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Fretoria Addison, LTC Ombudsman Volunteer
Coordinator/Information Support Specialist
Roland Bart, Senior Planner

Guillermo Espinosa, Senior Planner

Anna Harmon, Director, LTCOP

Jason Kent, Manager, GIS

Ben Mauldin, Executive Director

Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/
Transportation Director

Chris White, Director, Workforce Development




B1.

B2.

B3.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Foster Senn called the meeting to order at 12:11 p.m. on December 9, 2021.

Introduction of Guests

Anna Harmon, Director, Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program, introduced all guests in attendance.
Determination of a Quorum

Chairman Senn declared that a quorum was present.

Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda

MOTION, approved

Walt McLeod moved, seconded by Robert Liming to approve Order and Contents of the Overall
Agenda. The motion was approved.

Invocation

Anna Harmon gave the Invocation.

Chairman’s Introduction

e Good News from CMCOG and Around the Region

e Ben Mauldin mentioned the Lanza Latina Grant Gift Drive in which 140 toys were distributed to
children in the Midlands.

e The LTC Ombudsman is responsible for The Ombudsman Program is mandated to visit at least
80% of all facilities in the region, per quarter. The Central Midlands Ombudsman Program
exceeded that goal for this quarter.

e Job well done by our staff along with Chris White over at our Workforce as participation rates have
doubled.

Consent Agenda

Approval of the October 28, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes

2035 & 2040 Long Range Transportation Plans (LRTPs) Amendments — 2018 — 2022 SCDOT Safety
Performance Measures.
2040 LRTP Amendment — SCDOT Complete Street Directive

MOTION, approved
Rusty DePass moved, seconded by Robert Liming to approve the October 28, 2021 Board Meeting
Minutes and Consent Agenda. The motion was approved.



C1.

C2.

REGULAR AGENDA

CMCOG - COATS MPO 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan. The 2045 Long
Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) is a 25-year plan that provides a list of future multi-modal
transportation needs for the urban and rural areas of the Central Midlands region. The Central Midlands
Council of Governments (CMCOG) houses the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) —
Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS) - and Rural Planning Organization (RPO) responsible for
updating the LRTP in coordination with the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT),
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). CMCOG is
updating both the COATS MPO LRTP and RPO LRTP.

CMCOG/COATS MPO is the designated MPO and RPO for all or portions of Richland, Lexington,
Fairfield, Newberry, Kershaw, and Calhoun Counties. The CMCOG/ COATS MPO comprises of 3,074
square miles with an estimated 2018 population of 1,077,341 residents. For MPOs such as the COATS
MPO, which serve an urbanized population greater than 200,000, they are further classified as a
Transportation Management Area (TMA). These areas have additional Federal requirements for planning,
monitoring, and maintaining the transportation system.

The 2045 LRTP provides the following:

e 21 Urban Prioritized Widening Projects
e 61 Urban Aspirational Widening Projects
e 52 Urban Intersection Projects

e 4 Rural Prioritized Widening Projects
e 2 Rural Aspirational Widening Projects
e 43 Rural Intersection Projects

MOTION, approved
Smokey Davis moved for approval, seconded by Moses Bell to adopt CMCOG — COATS MPO 2045
Long Range Transportation Plan. The motion was approved unanimously.

FY 2022 — 2025 CMCOG - COATS MPO Transit Asset Management Plan

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt the CMCOG Transit Asset Management Plan. Every
agency must develop a transit asset management (TAM) plan if it owns, operates, or manages capital assets
used to provide public transportation and receives federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53
as a recipient or subrecipient. Each transit provider must designate an Accountable Executive (49 CFR
625.5) to ensure appropriate resources for implementing the agency's TAM plan and the Transit Agency
Safety Plan. CMCOG is a Tier Il agency which means that CMCOG is a direct or designated recipient of
Section 5310 and/or 5307 Funds. As a Tier Il agency, the CMCOG TAM Plan includes the following
elements:



Cs3.

C4.

An inventory of asset

A condition assessment of inventoried assets
Description of a decision support tool

A prioritized list of investments

oo o

MOTION, approved
Rusty DePass moved for approval, seconded by Smokey Davis to approve FY 2022 — 2025 CMCOG —
COATS MPO Transit Asset Management Plan. The motion was approved unanimously.

Resolution to Apply for Federal and State Grants

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt a resolution that will allow the Executive Director to apply
for and execute federal and state grants. CMCOG receives grant opportunities for FHWA, FTA, and
SCDOT. CMCOG uses these grant funds to develop and implement transportation planning projects.
These grants are also used to support the transportation planning staff. Projects identified with these grant
funds are included in the COG and/or MPO UPWP and/or TIP.

MOTION, approved
Moses Bell moved for approval, seconded by Darrell Hudson to approve the Resolution to Apply for
Federal and State Grants. The motion was approved unanimously.

2020 — 2027 TIP Amendment - CMRTA Low/No Grant

Reginald Simmons requested approval to amend the 2020 — 2027 TIP to add $2,935,190 in Section 5339
funds for CMRTA. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) announced the availability of $180 million
of Fiscal Year 2021 funds for the purchase or lease of low or no emission vehicles as well as related
equipment or facilities and workforce development training. The main purpose of the Low-No Program is
to support the transition of the nation’s transit fleet to the lowest polluting and most energy efficient transit
vehicles. The Low-No Program provides funding to state and local governmental authorities for the
purchase or lease of zero-emission and low-emission transit buses, including acquisition, construction, and
leasing of required supporting facilities. Additionally, recipients are permitted to use up to 0.5 percent of
their requested grant award for workforce development activities eligible under federal public
transportation law (49 U.S.C. 5314(b)) and an additional 0.5 percent for costs associated with training at
the National Transit Institute.

The COMET is requesting funds to purchase two New Flyer Xcelsior CHARGE (XE35) battery electric
buses and two New Flyer 40" Xcelsior (XHE40) fuel cell buses along with the necessary charging
equipment and hydrogen refueling infrastructure. These buses will replace four 2016 Starcraft Allstar
cutaway buses at the end of their useful life in 2023.

A brief discussion took place at this time.

MOTION, approved

Smokey Davis moved for approval, seconded by Moses Bell to amend the 2020 — 2027 TIP — CMRTA
Low/No Grant to add $2,935,190 in Section 5339 funds for CMRTA. The motion was objected by
Rusty DePass. The motion was approved by majority vote.



C5.

C6.

2035 LRTP & 2020 — 2027 Rural TIP Amendment — Macedonia Church Road Resurfacing Project

Reginald Simmons requested approval to amend the 2035 Rural LRTP and 2020 — 2027 Rural TIP to add
$6.8 million in guideshare funds for the Macedonia Church Road Resurfacing Project. Macedonia Church
Road is a federal aid secondary road that is located near the Town of Prosperity in Newberry County. This
corridor is approximately 10.28 miles long from Rikard School Road to Edgewater Drive. This corridor
has been identified by SCDOT as a needed resurfacing project but with the limitation in funding, the
corridor is not scheduled to be resurfaced for at least 4 years.

To address this need, CMCOG is proposing to use guideshare funds to resurface this 10.28-mile section.
SCDOT estimates the cost to be approximately $660K per mile, thus making the total cost for full corridor
an estimated $6.8 million.

A brief discussion took place at this time.

MOTION, approved

Vina Abrams moved for approval, seconded by Walt McLeod to amend the 2035 LRTP & 2020 —
2027 Rural TIP to add $6.8 million in guideshare funds for the Macedonia Church Road Resurfacing
Project. The motion was approved unanimously.

FY 2021 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt the FY 2021 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects. Under
Federal requirements, CMCOG must create an annual listing of obligated projects. The purpose of this
report is to identify and list the federal obligations that were made on approved projects in the previous
fiscal year. The FY 2021 reporting period is from October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021. Projects shown
in this report have been identified in either the 2020 — 2027 TIP and/or 2021 — 2027 STIP

The project categories included:

» Safety Improvements Intersection Improvements

« Signals Rehabilitation

* Resurfacing Bridge Maintenance

» Preservation Enhancements

*  Widening Bridge Replacements

« Pavement Markings Planning & Research

« Signing Emergency Repair/Replacement
* Interchange Improvements Corridor Improvements

In total $360,752,963.19 has been obligated in FY 2021. A total $307,372,710.54 of that amount was
federal funds.

A brief discussion took place at this time.



MOTION, approved

Paul Livingston moved for approval, second Robert Liming to approve the FY 2021 Annual Listing
of Obligated Projects. The motion was objected by Darrell Hudson. The motion was approved by
majority vote.

D. Announcements / Committee or Staff Reports / Correspondences

D1. Executive Directors Report

Ben Mauldin gave the following report:
e In November 2021, SCDOA completed the CMCOG’s Aging Program Financial Monitoring, in
which he thanked Ms. Candice Holloway, AAA Director for a job well done.
e SHIP Open Enrollment — 570 Seniors were assisted during this time.
e 2021 SCARC Virtual Conference
e Next Meeting will be held January 27, 2022

E. OLD / NEW BUSINESS

No old or new business was brought forth.

F. OTHER BUSINESS

No other business was brought forth.

G. Adjourn

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1: 16 p.m.

Benjamin J. Mauldin, Secretary-Treasurer Foster Senn, Chairperson



Approved by the CMCOG Board/MPO
Policy Committee on December 9™,

Public comment period ended on
December 31%.

Memorandum Public Comments Received
TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director
DATE.: December 9, 2021

SUBJECT: 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan

REQUESTED ACTION

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to adopt the 2045 Long Range
Transportation Plan. The full document is available on our website at the following address:
http://centralmidlands.org/wp-content/uploads/CMCOG_COATS-2045-Draft-LRTP 11.29.21.pdf

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

The Central Midlands Council of Governments and Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS)
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 2045 Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) serves as the
comprehensive plan for transportation investment to support the safe and efficient movement of people and
goods within the CMCOG region and the Columbia urbanized area through the plan horizon year of 2045.
The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is the designated Metropolitan Planning
Organization (MPO) and Rural Planning Organization (RPO) responsible for updating the Long Range
Transportation Plan (LRTP) in coordination with the South Carolina Department of Transportation
(SCDOT), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The 2045
LRTP is the MPO & RPO primary transportation policy document. It establishes the purpose and need for
major projects included in the federal transportation funding program, identifies activities to address major
transportation issues, and prioritizes investments in the transportation system.

Staff will request adoption of the 2045 LRTP.

ATTACHMENT
2045 LRTP Resolution

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 (803)376-5390 FAX(803)376-5394 Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



MIDIANDS

Council of Governments

ADOPTION OF THE CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS RURAL PLANNING
ORGANIZATION AND COLUMBIA AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY METROPOLITAN
PLANNING ORGANIZATON 2045 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the Columbia Area Transportation Study is the urbanized area Metropolitan Planning
Organization (MPO) as required by the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act (Pub. L. 112-141,
December 4, 2015) and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, executed on November 15, 2021, federal
legislation to complete and maintain a Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP); and

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments is the rural area Rural Planning Organization
(RPO) as recognized by the South Carolina Department of Transportation to complete and maintain a Long
Range Transportation Plan (LRTP); and

WHEREAS, the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan addresses all modes of transportation in the urbanized
area and rural planning area, has a horizon year of at least 20 years, and is fiscally constrained; and

WHEREAS, the Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS) Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)
has found the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan to be in conformance with the South Carolina State
Implementation Plan for maintenance of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards; and

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) Rural Planning Organization (RPO) has
found the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan to be in conformance with the South Carolina State
Implementation Plan for maintenance of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards; and

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments Board of Directors which also serves as the MPO
Policy Committee has provided for a 30-day public comment period for the 2045 Long Range Transportation
Plan; and

WHEREAS, the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan has been developed and reviewed by the MPO staff,
member agencies, affected stakeholders, and the general public through the MPO transportation planning
process and their recommendations have been found to be consistent with the principles of sound transportation
planning practices; and

WHEREAS, the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan has been developed and reviewed by the RPO staff,
member agencies, affected stakeholders, and the general public through the RPO transportation planning process
and their recommendations have been found to be consistent with the principles of sound transportation
planning practices; and

WHEREAS, the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan has been developed in a manner that meets and exceeds
the requirements of Title 23, Section 134 of the United States Code.

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 [J (803) 376-5390 LI FAX (803) 376-5394 [ Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the attached 2045 LRTP is hereby approved by the Central
Midlands Council of Governments and the Columbia Area Transportation Study; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Central Midlands Council of Governments and the Columbia Area
Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization is working in coordination and consultation with
other funding agencies to maximize the use of federal, state, and local funds that can be used to support and
improve transportation projects and initiatives.

CERTIFICATE the undersigned is the duly qualified Executive Director of Central Midlands Council of
Governments, and hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a

meeting of the Central Midlands Council of Governments and MPO Policy Committee held on December 9,
2021.

Foster Senn, Chairman Benjamin J. Mauldin, Executive Director
Central Midlands Council of Governments Central Midlands Council of Governments
Witness Witness

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 [J (803) 376-5390 LI FAX (803) 376-5394 [ Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



Enclosure3

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Central Midlands Council of Governments

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2021


bmauldin
Typewritten Text

bmauldin
Typewritten Text

bmauldin
Typewritten Text

bmauldin
Typewritten Text

bmauldin
Typewritten Text
Enclosure 3

bmauldin
Typewritten Text


Contents

Page
Independent AUdItOr'S REPOTT .......cccuviiiiieeiiieciieeiie ettt et ee e tee et ve e eteeesabeessseeesaeesaseans 1-3
Management's Discussion and ANALYSIS ........cccveeviiviierieenienienieeieereesreesseesaesnesseesseesseessnessneans 4-8
Financial Statements:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of NEt POSITION. .......c.oiuiiiiiiiieeeee ettt ettt 9
StatemMEnt Of ACHIVITIES .. .eoueruieiiitieierie ettt ettt ettt et e bttt s b et e st sbe et e ebeeaeenee 10
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds ............coccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balances to the Statement of
INEE POSTEION ...ttt ettt ettt e st e e e e tbeeebee e abeesabeeeseaesseeenseeennas 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental FUNAS .........ooiiiiiii ettt 13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities .........cc.cccvceerierncne 14
Notes to Financial Statements ..........ccceeeeierierieieiereeeee ettt 15-44
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of the Council’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability..........ccccceeeenneeee. 45
Schedule of the Council’s Pension Contributions...........c.ceeeerieriiriieeieenienie e 46
Schedule of the Council’s Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Other
Postemployment Benefits Liability .........ccccueviiieiiiiiiieiieieiiesieee e 47
Schedule of the Council’s Other Postemployment Benefits Contributions............ccceeeeveeennenns 48
Budgetary Comparison Schedule:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund.............cccoocvevieriinciiniiniiciieeeeesee e 49
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Aging Special Revenue Fund............cccoocveiiiiiiiiinennene. 50
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Transportation Special Revenue Fund.............ccccveevenenn. 51
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Special Revenue FUNd..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeetee ettt s 52
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Environmental Contracts Special Revenue Fund ............. 53

Single Audit Section:
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ..................ccccccovvvviiiiiiiiiniannin, 54 and 55
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance................ 56 and 57
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.........cccooecveeeviiieniieeciieeiiiecieeciee e 58 and 59
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ...........cccoeevveviieneenienienie e 60
Schedule of Findings and Questioned COSES .........cccueerieerieeniienienieeie ettt 61 and 62
Schedule of Prior Audit FINAINGS.......ccooviiiriiiiiiiiiiieciee ettt ettt esereesaneesevee e 63

Management’s Corrective ACtion PLan ..........ccccvevviiiiiiiiiiiieriesie et sae e 64



S COTT @ C OMPANY = not your average accounting firm

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Central
Midlands Council of Governments (the “Council”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Council's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

1441 Main Street, Suite 800 PHONE: (803) 256-6021 | FAX: (803) 256-8346 Post Office Box 8388
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 www.scottandco.com Columbia, South Carolina 29202



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Council as of June 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 - 8, information concerning the Council’s retirement and OPEB plans
on pages 45 — 48, and the budgetary comparison information on pages 49 - 53 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Council’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
4,2022, on our consideration of the Council's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Council's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Leott: and Congary XKC

Columbia, South Carolina
January 4, 2022



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis of the Central Midlands Council of Governments’ (the “Council”) financial performance
provides an overview of the Council’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The MD&A should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those
financial statements. The discussion and analysis includes comparative data for the prior year.

The Central Midlands Regional Planning Council was organized under the provisions of Article 2, Act 487 of the
1967 South Carolina General Assembly, as amended in 1971. On December 12, 1996, the name of the council was
renamed, by the approval of the member governments and the governor, to Central Midlands Council of
Governments. In general, the Council has the power to carry on such planning activities and to develop such studies
and programs related to aging, transportation, workforce innovations and other areas as it deems to be in the interest
of the Central Midlands area, which includes Richland, Lexington, Fairfield and Newberry counties.

Financial Highlights
The following are key financial highlights for the fiscal year:
o The net position of the Council was $(4,656,477) at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
o As ofthe close of the current fiscal year, the Council’s governmental funds reported an increase of $185,504
in the total fund balance with a combined ending fund balance of $1,538,252.
e The increase in the fund balance was due to closely monitoring expenses and reducing expenses where
possible.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements for FY2021 include the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), government-
wide statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary information.
The statements are highly condensed and present a government-wide view of the Council’s finances. Within this
view, all Council operations are categorized as governmental. Governmental activities include aging, community
development block grants, transportation, workforce development, environmental contracts, and general
administration. The Council has a component unit, the Central Midlands Development Corporation. The Central
Midlands Development Corporation is a separate entity with a separate governing board. For this overview, the
Central Midlands Development Corporation is excluded from the Council’s financial statements. These government-
wide statements are designed to be more corporate in that all activities are consolidated into a total for the Council.

Basic Financial Statements

e The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations. In simple terms, this
statement presents a snapshot view of the assets the Council owns, the liabilities it owes and the net
difference. The net difference is further separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and
unrestricted amounts.

o The Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of the Council’s programs. This statement
summarizes and simplifies the user’s analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting
and/or subsidized by general revenues.

e Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of government financial statements.
The Council’s major governmental funds are presented in their own columns and the remaining funds are
combined into a column title “Non-major Governmental Funds”. The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements. A budgetary comparison is presented for the
general and major funds with a legally adopted budget.

e The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosures required by governmental accounting
standards and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the Council’s financial condition.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This MD&A is intended to explain the significant changes in financial position and differences in operation between
the current and prior years.

Government-wide Financial Statements
A comparative condensed version of the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, follows:

Net Position at Year-End

Governmental Activities FY2021 FY2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,017,418 $ 1,009,467
Other Assets 1,846,685 2,354,646
Capital Assets 516,339 514,525
Total Assets 3,380,442 3,878,637
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions and OPEB 1,520,958 688,418
Current Liabilities 981,078 1,659,879
Long-Term Liabilities 7.854,987 6,638,018
Total Liabilities 8.836,065 8,297,897
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions and OPEB 721,812 1,391,083
Net Position:
Invested in capital assets 516,339 514,525
Unrestricted (5,172.816) (5.636.449)
Total Net Deficit $ (4.656,477) $ (5,121,924)

Other assets decreased by approximately $507,000 as a result of reconciliation of outstanding balances and the
decrease in COVID program activity as the COVID funds ended. Deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB
increased approximately $833,000 due to unfavorable projected versus actual investment experience on the state-
wide pension plan and changes in actuarial assumptions on the state-wide OPEB plan. Deferred inflows related to
pensions and OPEB decreased approximately $669,000 as the Council’s proportionate share of the state-wide pension
plan decreased significantly in prior years and the Council’s proportionate share remained relatively unchanged
between FY21 and FY20. Primarily as a result of overall changes in pensions and OPEB, long-term liabilities also
increased approximately $1.2 million. Additionally, current liabilities decreased by approximately $679,000 due to
a decrease in payables related to the Aging and Transportation programs.

A comparative condensed version of the Statement of Activities follows:

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020

Revenue FY2021 FY2020
Program Revenue $ 10,249,352 $ 12,892,679
General Revenue

Membership Dues 594,466 578,218
State Aid 70,407 70,407
Interest Income 30 239
Other Revenue 28.003 88,612
Total Revenue 10,942,258 13,630,155



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 (continued)

Expenses FY2021
Direct Personnel Costs 2,286,175
Operations and Maintenance 799,833
Development and Training 3,587
Travel and Transportation 32,403
Consulting Services 849,395
Payments to contractors 5,909,423
Other Program Expenses 555,900
Unallocated Depreciation 40,095

Total 10.476.811

Change in Net Position 465,447

Beginning in Net Position (5.121,924)

Ending Net Position $ (4.656.477)

FY2020
1,859,117
794,532
27,281
61,685
1,786,990
7,443,304
699,998
37.299
12,710,206

919,949

(6.041.873)
$ (5,121,924

Program revenue decreased approximately $2.6 million as a result of less program activity due to COVID-19, and
therefore less revenue reimbursable by grants. The increase in direct personnel cost can be attributed to pay upgrades
and cost-of-living adjustment increases. Additionally, development/training, travel/transportation, consulting
services, payments to contractors and other programs expenses collectively experienced an overall decrease of
approximately $2.6 million as a result of decrease in all programs activity due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Financial Analysis of the Council Funds

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Council's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term

inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.

Such information is useful in assessing the Council's

financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net

resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Governmental Funds FY2021
Total Assets $ 3.748.335
Total Liabilities 2,210,083

Fund Balances:

Nonspendable for prepaid items 5,127

Nonspendable for deposits 9,644

Assigned for special purposes 235,030

Unassigned 1,288,451
Total Fund Balances $ _1,538,252

$

$

FY2020
3,916,202

2,563,454

35,122
9,644
235,030
1,072,952
1,352,748

As previously referenced on page 5, total assets decreased approximately $168,000 primarily as a result of decreases
in COVID program activity and total liabilities decreased approximately $353,000 primarily due to decreases in
payables related to the Aging and Transportation programs. Nonspendable for prepaid items decreased approximately

$30,000 as a result of less prepaid expenses recorded in FY2021.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Budgetary Highlights

The Council adopts a balanced budget with budgeted expenditures equaling budgeted revenues. During the fiscal
year, the Council revised the budget to adjust the estimates used to prepare the original budget. This is routinely done
each year to reflect changes in funding sources, which necessitate changes in expenditures. The budgets are not
legally adopted, however, the Council still elects to include budget to actual schedules in the supplementary
information section of this report.

Capital Assets
At June 30, 2021, the Council had $516,339 in capital assets.
FY20201 FY2020
Land $ 130,848 $ 130,848
Building 284,614 299,761
Furniture and Equipment 100,877 83916
Net Capital Assets $ 516,339 $ 514,525

For more detailed information on capital asset activity, see Note 3 - Capital Assets.

Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements

The Council has an annual leave policy that permits employees to carry forward forty-five days of annual leave on
January 1 of each year. At June 30, 2021, the accrued annual leave balance equates to $189,496. In the audited
financial statements, $105,433 of the accrued annual leave balance is classified as current.

The Council also has an unsecured line of credit with a local financial institution with a credit limit of $300,000. The
balance of the line of credit was $0 at June 30, 2021, and the Council did not access the line of credit during FY2021.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget
During the FY2021, economic factors and potential new resources are as follows:

e Management will continue to apply the appropriate policies and procedures to ensure financials are being
accurately reported during the new fiscal year and make any necessary or required adjustments monthly for
proper reporting.

e The Council receives an appropriation from the General Assembly each year. These funds are subject to
reduction at any time. The Council will continue to request additional funding from the General Assembly
to restore funding to previous pre-recession funding levels. The additional state aid will allow the Council
to further expand its services. Any local dollars (membership dues) the Council receives are used for grant
matching requirements.

e Management will continue to monitor all core programs during the new fiscal year and make any necessary
or required adjustments to expenses so that the Council remains fiscally sound.

e Management plans to update the membership dues of CMCOG in FY 2022-23 using the official Census 2020
population numbers. This adjustment happens once every 10 years.

e The Council is the Administrative and Fiscal Agent for the Midlands Workforce Development Board in
support of the Workforce Innovation Opportunity ACT (WIOA) program for the Central Midlands Region.

7



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Council will continue to work with the Office of Economic Adjustment, Department of Defense
Community Planning to implement the Joint Land Use Plans.

The Council operates two centers in the Central Midlands Region (Fairfield, Lexington and Richland
counties) and continues to work for unemployed/under employed citizens to receive WIOA program benefits.

The Council will continue to provide planning and technical assistance to the counties and municipalities
within the Central Midlands region.

The Council is currently working on the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) and various other studies
to address transportation issues throughout the region.

As a 501(c)3, the Central Midlands Development Corporation (CMDC) will continue to take a more active
role in seeking grant and foundation funding opportunities. The CMDC will act as the fiscal agent on the
Regional Gateway Project for CMCOG member governments.

As always, the staff and Board of Directors will continue to seek alternative funding sources so that the
Council can remain a viable resource for the member governments and communities that it serves.

Requests for Financial Information

This financial information is designed to provide a general overview of the Council’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Benjamin Mauldin, Executive Director,

Petula Hendley, Director of Financial Management and Support Services
Central Midlands Council of Governments

236 Stoneridge Drive

Columbia, SC 29210



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from Federal government
Due from State governemnt
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposit

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilties:
Accounts payable
Accrued annual leave
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued annual leave
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits liability
Unearned revenue
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Governmental
Activities

Component
Unit

$ 1,017,418
1,671,407
128,336

32,171

5,127

9,644

$ 581,783

2,864,103

581,783

130,848
385,491

516,339

3,380,442

581,783

709,351
811,607

1,520,958

875,645
105,433

1,700

981,078

1,700

84,063
3,946,361
3,374,357

450,206

1,107

7,854,987

1,107

8,836,065

2,807

399,502
322,310

721,812

516,339

(5,172,816)

543,500
35,476

§  (4,656,477)

$ 578,976

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Net Revenue (Expense) and
Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating
Grants and Governmental Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Contributions Activities Unit
Governmental activities:
General administration $ 2,031 $ 1,411 $ (620) $ -
Program administration 10,339,467 10,137,032 (202,435) -
Local planning assistance 135,313 110,909 (24,404) -
Total governmental activities $ 10,476,811 $ 10,249,352 (227,459) -
Component unit $ 20,939 $ 565,351 544,412
General revenues:
Membership dues 594,466 -
State aid 70,407 -
Interest income 30 6
Other revenue 28,003 -
Total general revenue 692,906 6
Change in net position 465,447 544,418
Net position, beginning of year (5,121,924) 34,558
Net position, end of year $ (4,656,477) $ 578,976

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

10



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from Federal government
Due from State government
Due from other funds
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposit

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable for prepaid items
Nonspendable for security deposit
Assigned for special purposes
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
Workforce Non-major
Innovation and Environmental Governmental
General Aging Transportation Opportunity Act Contracts Funds Total
$ 1,017,418 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 1,017,418
- 385,402 185,401 1,010,326 - 90,278 1,671,407
- 128,336 - - - - 128,336
519,469 - - - 364,763 - 884,232
4,730 - - 6,497 - 20,944 32,171
1,612 - - 3,515 - - 5,127
9,644 - - - - - 9,644
$ 1,552,873 $ 513,738 $ 185,401 $ 1,020,338 $ 364,763 $ 111,222 3,748,335
$ 14,621 $ 322,782 $ 50 $ 489,323 $ 6,035 $ 42,834 875,645
- 42,957 - 39,036 358,728 9,485 450,206
- 147,999 185,351 491,979 - 58,903 884,232
14,621 513,738 185,401 1,020,338 364,763 111,222 2,210,083
1,612 - - 3,515 - - 5,127
9,644 - - - - - 9,644
235,030 - - - - - 235,030
1,291,966 - - (3,515) - - 1,288,451
1,538,252 - - - - - 1,538,252
$ 1,552,873 $ 513,738 $ 185,401 $ 1,020,338 $ 364,763 $ 111,222 3,748,335

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Fund balance of governmental funds $ 1,538,252

Capital assets, net of depreciation, are not current financial resources and are not
included in the governmental funds 516,339

Net pension and OPEB liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Net pension liability (3,946,361)
Net other postemployment benefits liability (3,374,357)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 709,351
Deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits 811,607
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (399,502)
Deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (322,310)

Long-term liabilities, including accrued annual leave, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (189,496)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (4,656,477)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12



Revenues:
Membership dues
State aid
Federal revenue
State revenue
Local revenue
Interest income
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Direct personnel costs

Indirect cost allocations

Support services
Operations and maintenance
Development and training
Travel and transportation
Consulting services

Capital outlay

Payments to contractors

Other program expenses
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

Workforce Non-major
Innovation and Environmental Governmental
General Aging Transportation Opportunity Act Contracts Funds Total

$ 594,466 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 594,466
70,407 - - - - - 70,407

- 4,109,087 1,116,351 3,988,428 3,858 262,490 9,480,214

- 557,028 - - - - 557,028

1,411 - 37,132 110,635 8,330 29,672 187,180

30 - - - - - 30

- - - - 11,553 16,450 28,003

666,314 4,666,115 1,153,483 4,099,063 23,741 308,612 10,917,328
1,234,177 480,091 255,692 422,422 2,455 144,538 2,539,375
(1,328,808) 450,096 306,063 413,747 3,991 154,911 -
244,628 44,262 18,809 485,483 1,020 5,631 799,833

- 3,216 50 321 - - 3,587

12,041 18,753 47 1,562 - - 32,403

- 2,450 748,542 - 16,275 82,128 849,395

41,909 - - - - - 41,909

- 3,130,452 - 2,774,042 - 4,929 5,909,423

11,189 543,016 - 1,145 - 549 555,899
215,136 4,672,336 1,329,203 4,098,722 23,741 392,686 10,731,824
451,178 (6,221) (175,720) 341 - (84,074) 185,504

- 6,221 175,720 - - 84,074 266,015
(265,674) - - (341) - - (266,015)
(265,674) 6,221 175,720 (341) - 84,074 -
185,504 - - - - - 185,504
1,352,748 - - - - - 1,352,748
$ 1,538,252 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 1,538,252

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 185,504

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities differ from the amounts
in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the Statement of
Activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over the estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense, or are allocated to the appropriate functional expense when the cost is
below the capitalization threshold. These activities are reconciled below:
Additions 41,909
Depreciation expense (40,095)

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures; however, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee contributions is reported
as pension expense.

Council pension contributions $ 269,509
Pension benefit 132,793 $ 402,302

Governmental funds report OPEB contributions as expenditures; however, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of OPEB benefits earned net of employee contributions is reported

as OPEB expense.

Council OPEB contributions $ 133,183
OPEB expense (251,869) $ (118,686)

Accrued annual leave is measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of
financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, the amounts

used exceeded the amount accrued for annual leave. (5,487)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 465,447

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Central Midlands Council of Governments (the “Council”)
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity - The Central Midlands Regional Planning Council was organized under the provisions
of Article 2, Act 487 of the 1967 South Carolina General Assembly, as amended in 1971. On December
12, 1996, the name of the council was renamed, by the approval of the member governments and the
governor, to Central Midlands Council of Governments. The Council does not have stockholders or equity
holders and is not subject to income taxes. In general, the Council has the power to carry on such planning
activities and to develop such studies and programs related to aging, transportation, workforce
innovations, environmental contracts, and other areas as it deems to be in the interest of the Central
Midlands area, which includes Richland, Lexington, Fairfield and Newberry counties.

The financial reporting entity, as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that exclusion could cause the financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. Based on the following criteria, the Council has determined it is not a component unit
of any other organization. Therefore, the Council reports as a primary entity.

The primary entity is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing
body including situations in which the voting majority consists of the primary entity's officials serving as
required by law and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
entity. The primary entity also may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on
it even if it does not appoint a voting majority of the board. An organization is fiscally dependent on the
primary entity that holds one or more of the following powers: determine its budget without another
government's having the authority to approve and modify that budget, levy taxes or set rates or charges
without approval by another government, and issue bonded debt without approval by another government.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The Central Midlands Development Corporation (CMDC) is a
legally separate entity with a separate board of directors. The CMDC is fiscally dependent on the Council.
Central Midlands Development Corporation is considered to be a component unit of the Council and has
been included as a discretely presented component unit. The component unit's year-end is June 30.

15



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Accounting

The accounts of the Council are organized on the basis of governmental funds. The operations of each
fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for
in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled.

Government-wide Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the Council. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government,
except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the effect of internal activities
upon revenues and expenses. Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the Council’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function, and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not program revenues are presented as
general revenues. The effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the Council’s
funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and fiduciary — are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds and aggregated non-major funds,
each displayed in a separate column.

The Council reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the Council, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Aging Special Revenue Fund - The Aging Special Revenue fund is used to account for receipts
and expenditures of money passed through the South Carolina Department on Aging. These funds are
used to promote coordination of aging services in the region.

The Transportation Special Revenue Fund - The Transportation Special Revenue Fund is used to
account for receipts and expenditures of money passed through from the United States and South
Carolina Departments of Transportation. These funds are used to provide region-wide transportation
planning technical assistance to local governments and the Central Midlands Regional Transportation
Authority.

16



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Accounting (continued)

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Special Revenue Fund - The Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the receipts and
expenditures of money passed from the United States Department of Labor to the South Carolina
Department of Employment and Workforce to provide workforce investment activities that increase
employment, retention, earnings, and skills of participants.

The Environmental Contracts Special Revenue Fund — The Environmental Contracts Special
Revenue Fund is used to account for receipts and expenditures passed from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency to the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental
Control to provide support for environmental planning activities and to examine regional environmental
issues such as air and water quality, open space preservation, sustainable energy, and environmental
justice.

Additionally, the Council reports the following fund type:

The Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds - The Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds are operating funds
used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted for specific
purposes.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial
statements are reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis, revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Council gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and donations. Revenue
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available
to finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash,
except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after year end) are recognized when due. The
primary sources susceptible to accrual are investment income and grant revenue.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for claims and judgments and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Payments of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing uses. Funds received but not
yet earned are reflected as unearned revenues.

Component Unit — The Central Midlands Development Corporation financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.

17



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Accounting (continued):

Use of resources - When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Council’s
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budget - As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Council adopted a legal budget for the year ended June 30, 2021, general resources, and the related
expenditures required to earn those resources. The budget is adopted and amended, as considered
necessary, by approval from the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.

The Council adopts an annual legal budget, which covers the General fund and certain Special Revenue
Funds. The budgets for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds are prepared on the
modified accrual basis. The statements comparing budgets and actual amounts for these governmental
funds include adjustments to those budgetary bases for the differences noted above and for certain other
items which are reported in the Council's budget differently than they are reported for accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Budgetary level of control is exercised at the
department level. Any revisions that alter total expenditures of the General Fund and certain Special
Revenue Funds must be approved by the Board of Directors. During fiscal year 2021, the Council did
approve budgetary expenditure amendments.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedules included in the required supplementary information presents a
comparison of budgetary data to actual results of operations for the General Fund and major Special
Revenue Funds (Aging, Transportation, Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act, and
Environmental Contracts), for which an annual operating budget is legally adopted. These funds utilize
the same basis of accounting for both budgetary purposes and actual results.

The Executive Director and all program directors and managers receive interim financial reports.
Progress reports on the Council’s budgetary and fiscal status are submitted to the Board of Directors
quarterly. Significant variations are explained. Problem areas and the probable solutions are identified.
All actual revenues and expenditures over final budget amounts for the general fund and each special
revenue fund are funded by overages of other accounts within the fund. Overages in total in the special
revenue funds will be covered by the transfers from the general fund.

When the Executive Director determines that it is necessary to amend the budget, the amended budget
is taken to the Executive Committee for approval. Revisions may be considered to reflect:

(1) changes made by the addition of new grant awards not anticipated in preparing the initial
budget; (2) additional costs incurred as a result of increased work activities; or (3) unanticipated

costs which have occurred beyond normal operating control.

The General, Aging, Transportation, Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act, and Environmental
Contracts Special Revenue Funds have separate legally adopted budgets.

18



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Accounting (continued):

Indirect Cost Allocation - Cost allocations made by the council are in accordance with the guidelines
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Subpart E — Cost Principles. These
guidelines provide that allowable indirect costs are identified and accumulated in an indirect cost pool
and distributed to applicable federal, state and local grant activities and programs based upon an
appropriate actual indirect cost allocation methodology. Certain employee benefits are accumulated in
a fringe benefit cost pool and allocated to grant projects as a percentage of labor costs, referred to as
release time. In accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Subpart E
— Cost Principles, the cost allocations are subject to subsequent federal audit or review.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Council maintains cash and pooled investments that are available
for use by all funds. Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable consists of amounts due from the Federal government,
state and local governments or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable
expenditures made pursuant to the Council’s grants and contracts.

Prepaid Items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements using the consumption
method. An asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense
is reported in the year which services are consumed.

Capital Assets - The Council accounts for capital asset purchases by recording acquisitions at cost or
estimated historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the date of
donation. The Council capitalizes moveable personal property with a unit value in excess of $1,500 and a
useful life in excess of one year. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to expenses in the year in
which the expense was incurred. Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation. Useful lives of the Council's capital assets are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-40 years
Equipment 3-10 years

19



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The Council has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category for inflows related to pensions and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB). The inflows related to pensions and OPEB are described in Notes 9
and 10.

Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of net position that is applicable to a future
period. Changes in net pension and net OPEB liabilities not included in expenses are reported as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Employer contributions subsequent to
the measurement date of the net pension and net OPEB liabilities are reported as deferred outflows of
resources.

Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues in the governmental funds include amounts received from
grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned due to being in advance of meeting eligibility
requirements.

Accrued Annual Leave - All vested annual leave pay is recorded as an expenditure in the current year
to the extent it is paid during the year. Council employees can accumulate annual leave up to forty-five
days for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or retirement. Any days beyond that
limit accrued and not taken by the end of the calendar year are forfeited.

Deferred Compensation Agreement - The Council offers its employees a voluntary deferred
compensation plan structured and operated according to provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The plan is administered by an agency of the State of South Carolina and the Council makes no
contributions on behalf of the participants. The Council's liability is limited to remitting amounts deferred
and withheld from the employee's wages to the Plan administrator.

Operating Transfers - Operating transfers are distributions of local cash resources to grant projects
requiring local cash match in accordance with the terms and conditions of grant contracts and or to absorb
any deficit in any grant project. Local funds are derived from Council dues paid by member
governments, state aid funds, sale of data and information, internet advertising and internet webhosting.

Interfund Receivables and Payables - During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur
between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are
classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the governmental funds balance sheet.

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and additions to/deductions from SCRS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SCRS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fairvalue.

20



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (“OPEB”) - For purposes of measuring the net
OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the South Carolina Retiree Health
Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and additions to/deductions from the SCRHITF’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the accrual basis of accounting as they are reported by the SCRHITF in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses and benefits are recognized when incurred. Claims liabilities are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Non-exchange Transactions - The Council generally has two types of non-exchange transactions,
government-mandated non-exchange transactions (which occur when a government at one level
provides resources to a government at another level and requires the recipient to use the resources for
a specific purpose) and voluntary non-exchange transactions (which result from legislative or
contractual agreements other than exchanges, entered into willingly by the parties to the agreement).
The Council recognizes non-exchange transactions when they are both measurable and probable for
collection. For government-mandated non-exchange transactions and voluntary non-exchange
transactions, the Council recognized assets when all applicable eligibility requirements are met, or
resources are received, whichever is first, and revenue when all applicable eligibility requirements are
met.

Net Position - The Council’s net position in the government-wide financial statements are classified
as follows:

Net investment in capital assets: This represents the Council’s total investment in capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation.

Restricted net position: This category represents resources in which the Council is legally or
contractually obligated by external parties such as lenders, grantors, contributors or by laws or
regulations to spend in accordance with the restrictions imposed.

Unrestricted net position: Unrestricted net position consists of all other assets not included in the
above categories.

The Council’s policy for applying expenses that can use both restricted and unrestricted resources is

designated to the program administrative level. General practice is to first apply the expense to the
restricted resource then to unrestricted resources.

21



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund Balances - In the governmental fund financial statements, the Council’s fund balances are
classified as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example,
inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted fund balance - Represents amounts that are (a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) are imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - Represents amounts that can only be used by for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-
making authority.

Assigned fund balance - Amounts are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance - Represents the fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds
and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund. The Council reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the General Fund. For all other
funds, deficits in Fund balance at year-end are reported as unassigned.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, the Council’s general practice is to first reduce committed resources,
followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources.

Income Taxes - The Council is excluded from Federal income taxes under Section 115(1) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The most significant estimates affecting these financial
statements are the estimates for the net pension and OPEB liabilities.

22



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset. The classification of securities within the fair value
hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the security type and the inputs used to
determine their fair value, as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities
that each Fund has the ability to access.

Level 2 - other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets and
liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default
rates) or other market-corroborated inputs).

Level 3 - unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the
extent observable inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in
determining the fair value of investments).

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for
instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification
is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety.

The Council maintains a cash and cash equivalent investment pool that is available for use by all funds.
Each fund portion of this pool is shown on the balance sheet as pooled cash and cash equivalents.
Transfers from the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are made at the request of the Council.

Individual funds may maintain cash and cash equivalents separate from the pool for convenience and
control. Petty cash and working funds are maintained for nonrecurring incidental purchases. Such

holdings are shown on the governmental balance sheet as non-pooled cash and cash equivalents.

Investments with maturities greater than three (3) months are shown on the balance sheet by fund type
as investments.

23



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (continued)

Total cash and investments at June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:

Demand deposits $ 781,948
Money market accounts 221,643
Cash on hand 40
LGIP 13,787

Total cash and investments $ 1,017,418

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits.

Credit Risk - South Carolina statutes authorize investments in certificates of deposit, savings accounts,
repurchase agreements, the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, obligations of the U.S.
Government and government agencies unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. Government. The Council
has no investment policy that would further restrict its choices.

At June 30, 2021, the Council’s investments were rated as follows:

Investment Type Classification Total
SC Local Government Investment Pool Level 2 $ 13,787

The local government investment pool is a 2a7-like pool which is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment company, but has a policy that it will operate in a
manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Pool is
included as an investment trust fund in the State of South Carolina Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. At June 30, 2021, the underlying security ratings of the Council's investment in the LGIP is
classified in risk category “A” and may be obtained from the LGIP's complete financial statements at
treasurer.sc.gov or by writing to the following address:

Office of the State Treasurer
Local Government Investment
Pool Post Office Box 11778
Columbia, South Carolina 29211

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the Council manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than
twelve months.

It is the policy of the State Treasurer’s Office that no derivatives of the U.S. Government Securities or
Federal Agency Securities or A1/P1 Commercial Paper be purchased by or for the LGIP. It is the policy
of the State Treasurer’s Office that the weighted average maturity (WAM) of the LGIP portfolio not
exceed 60 days.

24



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Council’s
cash equivalents and deposits may notbe returned to the Council. At year-end, the Council’s net carrying
amount of deposits was $1,017,418 and the bank balance was $1,127,242. Cash on deposit in excess
of FDIC insured limits totaled $863,455 at June 30, 2021.

As of June 30, 2021, the Council held the following investments:

% of
Balance Sheet Carrying Investment
Investment Type Classification Value Portfolio
SC Local Government Investment Pool Cash and Equivalents $ 13,787 100%

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Council does not maintain deposits that are
denominated in a currency other than the United States dollar; therefore, the Council is not exposed to
this risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Council’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in
any one issuer that is in excess of 5 percent (5%) investments, when needed.

Note 3. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $§ 130,848 $ - $ - $ 130,848
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 726,024 4,500 - 730,524
Equipment and furniture 378,840 37,409 - 416,249
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,104,864 41,909 - 1,146,773
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building (426,263) (19,647) - (445,910)
Equipment and furniture (294,924) (20,448) - (315,372)
Total accumulated depreciation (721,187) (40,095) - (761,282)
Total capital assets, net $ 514,525 $ 1,814 $ - $ 516,339

Depreciation expense of $40,095 was unallocated in the primary government.

25



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities is as follows:

Due within
June 30, 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 one year
Accrued annual leave $ 184,009 $ 110,920 $ (105,433) $ 189,496 $ 105,433
Net pension liability 3,391,082 555,279 - 3,946,361 -
Net OPEB liability 2,711,441 662,916 - 3,374,357 -
Total $ 6,286,532 $ 1,329,115 $  (105,433) $ 7,510,214 $ 105,433

For the governmental activities, compensated absences, net pension liability, and net OPEB liability
are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Note 5. Short-Term Note Payable — Line-of-Credit

The Council has an unsecured line-of-credit for $300,000 with a maturity date of April 25, 2022. The
line-of-credit is a variable rate nondisclosable revolving line of credit. The purpose of obtaining the
line-of-credit is to meet any current obligations. The interest rate on the line-of-credit is the lender’s
prime rate plus 1.25%, with an interest floor of 5.0% and with an interest rate ceiling of 18.0%. The
Council did not used the credit line during fiscal year 2021. There is $0 outstanding on the line-of-
credit at June 30, 2021, and no interest was paid during the year ended June 30,2021.

Note 6. Leases

The Council leases facilities and equipment under several operating leases maturing between August,
2021 and July, 2025. Future minimum lease payments are as follows for the year ending June 30, 2021:

2022 $ 221,222
2023 157,416
2024 118,120
2025 26,388

Total § 523,146

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Council paid $203,174 under operating leases.
Note 7. Related Party Transactions
Member Local Government Dues - All member governments are required to pay dues to the Council.

Dues are determined annually and are recognized as revenues when assessed because they are
measurable and are collectible within the current period. Dues for the year were $594,466.

26



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Contingencies

The Council is party to various lawsuits arising out of the normal conduct of its operations. In the
opinion of the Council’s management, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material
adverse effect of the Council’s financial position.

The Council participates in certain federal and state grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests
for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management believes disallowances, if any, will not be material.

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (“PEBA”), created July 1, 2012, is the state
agency responsible for the administration and management of the various Retirement Systems and
retirement programs of the state of South Carolina, including the State Optional Retirement Program
and the S.C. Deferred Compensation Program, as well as the state’s employee insurance programs. As
such, PEBA is responsible for administering the South Carolina Retirement Systems’ five defined
benefit pension plans. PEBA has an 11-member Board of Directors, appointed by the Governor and
General Assembly leadership, which serves as custodian, co-trustee and co-fiduciary of the Systems
and the assets of the retirement trust funds. The Retirement System Investment Commission
(“Commission” as the governing body, “RSIC” as the agency), created by the General Assembly in
2005, has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds’ assets. The Commission,
an eight-member board, serves as co-trustee and co-fiduciary for the assets of the retirement trust funds.
By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (“SFAA”), which consists of five elected officials,
also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the actuary of the Systems.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and
additions to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual
basis of accounting as they are reported by the Systems in accordance with GAAP. For this purpose,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund
expenses are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments
are reported at fair value.

PEBA issues a CAFR containing financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available through the Retirement Benefits’ link
on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA,
202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary government
of the state of South Carolina and therefore, retirement trust fund financial information is also included
in the comprehensive annual financial report of the state.

27



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)
Plan Descriptions

* The South Carolina Retirement System (“SCRS”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits
for teachers and employees of the state and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of state
agencies, public school districts, higher education institutions, other participating local subdivisions of
government and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly at or after the 2012
general election.

*» The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as
an alternative to SCRS to certain newly hired employees of state agencies, institutions of higher
education, public school districts and individuals first elected to the S.C. General Assembly at or after
the general election in November 2012. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds into
an account administered by one of four third party service providers. PEBA assumes no liability for
State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liability of the four third party service providers. For
this reason, State ORP assets are not part of the retirement systems’ trust funds for financial statement
purposes.

* The Council does not have employees that participate in the Police Officers Retirement System
(“PORS”).

Membership

Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief
summary of the requirements under each system is presented below.

* SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute
to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees, teachers, and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012
general election. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to
July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of
membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

* State ORP - As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and higher
education employees and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly at or after the
November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State ORP. Contributions to the
State ORP are at the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employer to the
member’s account with the ORP vendor for the employee contribution and a portion of the employer
contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the remaining portion of the
employer contribution and an incidental death benefit contribution, if applicable, which is retained by
SCRS.

28



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)
Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key
elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final
compensation/current annual salary. A brief summary of the benefit terms for each system is presented
below.

* SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless
of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25
years of service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or
more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90
requirement that the total of the member’s age and the member’s creditable service equals at least 90
years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at
age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental
death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who
participate in the death benefit program.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the
lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit
on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early
retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until
the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years
of service credit had they not retired.

Contributions

Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting actuary to ensure applicable
contribution rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws. Under these provisions, SCRS and PORS contribution requirements must be sufficient to
maintain an amortization period for the financing of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”)
over a period that does not exceed the number of years scheduled in state statute. Legislation in 2017
increased, but also established a ceiling for SCRS and PORS employee contribution rates. Effective
July 1, 2017, employee rates were increased to a capped rate of 9.00 percent for SCRS and 9.75 percent
for PORS. The legislation also increased employer contribution rates beginning July 1, 2017 for both
SCRS and PORS by two percentage points and further scheduled employer contribution rates to
increase by a minimum of one percentage point each year in accordance with state statute. However,
the General Assembly postponed the one percent increase in the SCRS and PORS employer
contribution rates that was scheduled to go into effect beginning July 1, 2020. If the scheduled
contributions are not sufficient to meet the funding periods set in state statute, the board shall increase
the employer contribution rates as necessary to meet the funding periods set for the applicable year.
The maximum funding period of SCRS and PORS is scheduled to be reduced over a ten-year schedule
from 30 years beginning fiscal year 2018 to 20 years by fiscal year 2028.

29



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)

Additionally, the Board is prohibited from decreasing the SCRS and PORS contribution rates until the
funded ratio is at least 85 percent. If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for
funding purposes shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability
of the system (the funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than 85 percent, then the board, effective on
the following July first, may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a finding that
the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than 85 percent. If contribution rates are decreased
pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded
ratio of less than 85 percent, then effective on the following July first, and annually thereafter as
necessary, the board shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual
actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than 85 percent.

Required employee contribution rates' are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2021 Fiscal Year 2020
SCRS
Employee Class Two 9.00% 9.00%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
State ORP 9.00% 9.00%

Required employer contribution rates' are as follows:

SCRS
Employer Class Two 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Class Three 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
State ORP
Employer Contribution? 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%

! Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
2 Of this employer contribution, 5% of earnable compensation must be remitted by the employer
directly to the ORP vendor to be allocated to the member’s account with the remainder of the employer
contribution remitted to SCRS.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension
liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience
study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was
most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2019 for first use in the July 1, 2021 actuarial
valuation.

30




Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)

The June 30, 2020, total pension liability (“TPL”), net pension liability (“NPL”), and sensitivity
information shown in this report were determined by a consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and
Company (“GRS”) and are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2019. The total
pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2020,
using generally accepted actuarial principles.

The following provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the TPL
as of June 30, 2020:

SCRS
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.0% to 12.5%
(varies by service) !
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500
annually

! Includes inflation at 2.25%

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and gender. The
base mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (“2016 PRSC”)
was developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future
improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2016.

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2020 TPL are as follows:

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators and Judges 2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females
multiplied by 92% multiplied by 98%

General Employees and Members of 2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females

the General Assembly multiplied by 100% multiplied by 111%

Public Safety and Firefighters 2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females
multiplied by 125% multiplied by 111%

Net Pension Liability

The NPL is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system’s TPL
determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System’s fiduciary net position. NPL totals, as
of June 30, 2020, for SCRS are presented below:

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Employers’ Net Percentage of Total
System Liability Net Position Pension Liability Pension Liability
SCRS  $51,844,187,763 $26,292,418,682 $25,551,769,081 50.7%

31



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)

The TPL is calculated by the Systems' actuary, and each plan's fiduciary net position is reported in the
Systems' financial statements. The NPL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB
No. 67 in the Systems’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.
Liability calculations performed by the Systems’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements
of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the plans’ funding
requirements. The Council’s net pension liability at June 30, 2021 was $3,946,361.

The Council’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for SCRS is as follows for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

System June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 Change
SCRS 0.015445% 0.014851% 0.000594%

The Council’s change in proportionate share of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows
and outflows of the resources will be amortized into pension expense over the respective average
remaining service lives of the system.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 20 year capital market
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an
arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based
inputs. Expected returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2020 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is
produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and
adding expected inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent
assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent
real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

32



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)

Long Term
Expected Expected
Target Asset Arithmetic Real  Portfolio Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return  Rate of Return
Global Equity 51.0%

Global Public Equity!~ 35.0 7.81% 2.73%

Private Equity* 9.0 8.91 0.80

Equity Options Strategies' 7.0 5.09 0.36
Real Assets 12.0

Real Estate (Private)®? 8.0 5.55 0.44

Real Estate (REITs)? 1.0 7.78 0.08

Infrastructure (Private)*? 2.0 4.88 0.10

Infrastructure (Public)? 1.0 7.05 0.07
Opportunistic 8.0

Global Tactical Asset 7.0 3.56 0.25
Allocation!

Other Opportunistic Strategies 1.0 4.41 0.04
Credit 15.0

High Yield Bonds/Bank Loans'+? 4.0 4.21 0.17

Emerging Markets Debt 4.0 3.44 0.14

Private Debt?? 7.0 5.79 0.40
Rate Sensitive 14.0

Core Fixed Income! 13.0 1.60 0.21

Cash and Short Duration (Net) 1.0 0.56 0.01
Total Expected Return* 100.0% 5.80
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25
Total Expected Nominal Return 8.05%

! Portable Alpha Strategies will be capped at 12% of total assets; Hedge funds (including all hedge
funds used in portable alpha implementation) capped at 20% of total assets.

? The target weights to Private Equity, Private Debt, Private Infrastructure and Private Real Estate will
be equal to their actual weights as of prior month end. Private Equity and Public Equity combine for
44 percent of entire portfolio. Private Debt and High Yield/Bank Loans combine for 11 percent of the
entire portfolio. Private Infrastructure and Public Infrastructure combine for 3 percent of the entire
portfolio. Private Real Estate and Real Estate (REITs) combine for 9 percent of entire portfolio.

3 RSIC staff and Consultant will notify the Commission if Private Markets assets exceed 25% of total
assets.

* The expected return for each of the Portable Alpha asset classes includes the expected return
attributed to the Overlay Program. For benchmarking purposes there is a 10% weight assigned to
Portable Alpha Hedge Funds in the Policy Benchmark.

33



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will be
made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of
Laws. Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the Council’s proportional share of the collective NPL of the participating
employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the Council’s proportional
share of the employers' NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percent
lower (6.25 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity of the Proportional Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase
System (6.25%) Rate (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS $ 4,891,030 $ 3,946,361 $ 3,157,550

Deferred Outflows (Inflows) of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Council recognized a pension benefit of $132,793 which is
included in direct personnel costs in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance. At June 30, 2021, the Council reported deferred outflows (inflows) of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement
date $ 269,509 $ -
Differences in actual and expected retirement plan
experience 45,536 (14,923)
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments 290,288 -
Change in actuarial assumptions 4,835 -

Change in proportionate share of net pension
liability and differences between actual
contributions and the Council’s proportionate
share of contributions 99,183 (384,579)
$ 709,351 $  (399,502)

34



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plan (continued)

The Council reported $269,509 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources will be
recognized in pension expense in future years. The following schedule reflects the amortization of the
Council’s proportional share of the net balance of remaining deferred outflows (inflows) of resources
at June 30, 2021. Average remaining services lives of all employees provided with pensions through
the pension plans at June 30, 2020 was 3.984 years for SCRS.

Measurement Period Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Ending June 30, SCRS
2021 2022 $ (253,245)
2022 2023 86,136
2023 2024 133,373
2024 2025 74,076

$ 40,340

The Council’s contributions to SCRS and ORP for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and
2019 were $269,509, $265,522, and $228,332, respectively.

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions

PEBA is a state agency responsible for the administration and management of South Carolina’s
employee insurance programs and other post-employment benefits trusts. By law, the SFAA, which
consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions in administering the State
Health Plan and other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”).

Plan Descriptions

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund (“OPEB Trust”), refers to the South Carolina Retiree
Health Insurance Trust Fund (“SCRHITF”) established by the State of South Carolina as Act 195,
which became effective in May 2008. The SCRHITF was created to fund and account for the employer
costs of the State’s retiree health and dental plans.

In accordance with Act 195, the OPEB Trusts are administered by the PEBA - Insurance Benefits
Division (“IBD”), a part of PEBA. The State Treasurer is the custodian of the funds held in trust. The
Board of Directors of PEBA has been designated as the Trustee.

The OPEB Trust is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Article 5 of the State Code
of Laws defines the two plans and authorizes the Trustee to at any time adjust the plan, including its
benefits and contributions, as necessary to insure the fiscal stability of the plan. In accordance with
the South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the State provides post-
employment health and dental and long-term disability benefits to retired State and school district
employees and their covered dependents.

35



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

Benefits

The SCRHITF is a healthcare plan that covers retired employees of the State of South Carolina,
including all agencies, and public school districts. The SCRHITF provides health and dental insurance
benefits to eligible retirees. Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental benefits if they
have established at least ten years of retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment
May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are eligible for benefits if they have established 25 years of service for
100% employer funding and 15-24 years of service for 50% employer funding.

Contributions and Funding Policies

Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires these
postemployment benefits to be funded through non-employer and employer contributions for active
employees and retirees to the IBD. Non-employer contributions consist of an annual appropriation by
the General Assembly and the statutorily required transfer from IBD reserves.

The SCRHITF is funded through participating employers that are mandated by State statute to
contribute at a rate assessed each year by the Department of Administration Executive Budget Office
on active employee covered payroll. The covered payroll surcharge for the years ended June 30, 2021,
2020, and 2019 was 6.25%, 6.25%, and 6.05%, respectively. The Council paid $108,254, $107,691,
and $94,592 applicable to the surcharge included with the employer contribution for retirement benefits
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The South Carolina Retirement
System collects the monthly covered payroll surcharge for all participating employers and remits it
directly to the SCRHITF. Other sources of funding for the SCRHITF also include the implicit subsidy,
or age-related subsidy inherent in the healthcare premiums structure. The implicit subsidy represents
a portion of the health care expenditures paid on behalf of the employer’s active employees. For
purposes of GASB Statement No. 75, this expenditure on behalf of the active employee is reclassified
as a retiree health care expenditure so that the employer’s contributions towards the plan reflect the
underlying age-adjusted, retiree benefit costs. Non-employer contributions include the mandatory
transfer of accumulated IBD reserves and the annual appropriation budgeted by the General Assembly.
It is also funded through investment income.

For the SCRHITF, the allocation percentage is based on the covered payroll surcharge contribution for
each employer. In accordance with part (b) of paragraph 69 of GASB Statement No. 75, participating
employers should recognize revenue in an amount equal to the employer’s proportionate share of the
change in the collective net OPEB liability arising from contributions to the OPEB plan during the
measurement period from non-employer contributing entities for purposes other than the separate
financing of specific liabilities to the OPEB plan. Therefore, employers should classify this revenue
in the same manner as it classifies grants from other entities.

36



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB Trusts, and
additions to and deductions from the OPEB Trusts fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they were reported by the OPEB Trusts. For this purpose, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Therefore, benefit and administrative expenses
are recognized when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value.

The IBD issues audited financial statements and required supplementary information for the OPEB
Trust Funds. This information is publicly available through the Insurance Benefits’ link on PEBA’s
website at peba.sc.gov or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA — Insurance
Benefits, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary
government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, OPEB Trust fund financial information is also
included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the state.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedules of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as
understood by the employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of the valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the June 30,2019
valuations for SCRHITF:

37



Central Midlands Council of Governments

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

Actuarial Cost Method:
Inflation:
Investment Rate of Return:

Single Discount Rate:
Demographic Assumptions:

Mortality:

Health Care Trend Rate:

Retiree Participation:

Notes:

Roll Forward Disclosures

Entry Age Normal

2.25%

2.75%, net of OPEB Plan investment expense; including
inflation

2.45% as of June 30, 2020

Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina
Retirement Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2015
For healthy retirees, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina
Mortality Table for Males and the 2016 Public Retirees of South
Carolina Mortality Table for Females are used with fully
generational mortality projections based on Scale AA from the
year 2016. Multipliers are applied to the base tables based on
gender and employment type.

Initial trend starting at 6.40% and gradually decreasing to an
ultimate trend rate of 4.00% over a period of 14 years

79% for retirees who are eligible for funded premiums

59% participation for retirees who are eligible for Partial Funded
Premiums

20% participation for retirees who are eligible for Non-Funded
Premiums

The discount rate changed from 3.13% as of June 30, 2019 to
2.45% as of June 30, 2020; updates were also made to the
healthcare trend rate assumption, including an adjustment to
reflect to repeal of the “Cadillac Tax”.

The actuarial valuations were performed as of June 30, 2019. Update procedures were used to roll
forward the total OPEB liabilities to June 30, 2020.

Net OPEB Liability

The Net OPEB Liability (NOL) is calculated separately for each OPEB Trust Fund and represents that
particular Trust’s Total OPEB Liability (TOL) determined in accordance with GASB No. 74 less that
Trust’s fiduciary net position. The allocation of each employer’s proportionate share of the collective
Net OPEB Liability and collective OPEB Expense was determined using the employer’s payroll-
related contributions over the measurement period. This method is expected to be reflective of the
employer’s long-term contribution effort as well as be transparent to individual employers and their

external auditors.

38



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)
The following table represents the components of the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020:

Plan Fiduciary Net

OPEB Plan Position as a

Trust Total OPEB Fiduciary Net Net OPEB Percentage of Total

Fund Liability Position Liability OPEB Liability
SCRHITF  §19,703,745,672 $1,652,299,185 $ 18,051,446,487 8.39%

The Council’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for SCRHITF is as follows for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

OPEB Trust Fund June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 Change
SCRHITF 0.018693% 0.017931% 0.000762%

The TOL is calculated by the Trusts’ actuary, and each Trust’s fiduciary net position is reported in the
Trust’s financial statements. The NOL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB No.
74 in the Trusts’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability
calculations performed by the Trusts’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB
Nos. 74 and 75 and are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the Trusts’ funding
requirements.

At June 30, 2021, the Council reported a liability of $3,374,357 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019
and rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The Council’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on
a projection of the Council’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Council’s
proportion was 0.018693%.

Single Discount Rate

The Single Discount Rate of 2.45% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCRHITF.
The accounting policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal
bond rate. Due to the plan’s investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended
discount rate and the municipal bond rate would be less than several basis points (several hundredths
of one percent).

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return represents assumptions developed using an arithmetic building
block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. The expected
returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted at
the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation.
This information is summarized in the following table:

39



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

Long Term
Expected Expected

Target Asset Arithmetic Real  Portfolio Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return  Rate of Return
U.S. Domestic Fixed Income 80.00% 0.60% 0.48%
Cash equivalents 20.00 0.35 0.07
Total Expected Real Return 100.00% 0.55
Expected Inflation 2.25
Total Return 2.80%
Investment Return Assumption 2.75%

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the Council’s proportional share of the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability
calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 2.45%, as well as what the Council’s proportional share of
the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is one
percent lower or one percent higher:

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase
(1.45%) Rate (2.45%) (3.45%)
SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability $ 4,026,285 $ 3,374,357 $ 2,853,417

Regarding the sensitivity of the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend
rates, the following table presents the Council’s proportional share of the plan’s net OPEB liability,
calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the Council’s proportional share of the plan’s
net OPEB liability would be if were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower or one
percent higher:

Current Healthcare
1.00% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1.00% Increase

SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability $ 2,731,218 | § 3,374,357 $ 4,218,983

Deferred Outflows (Inflows) of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Council recognized OPEB expense of $251,869 which is included
in direct personnel costs in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance. At June 30, 2021, the Council reported deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

40




Central Midlands Council of Governments

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

SCRHITF

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement

date

Differences in actual and expected investment

experience

Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments
Change in actuarial assumptions
Change in proportionate share

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
108,254 $ -
96,510 (76,846)
4,535 (12,405)
502,146 (134,384)
100,162 (98,675)
811,607 $ (322,310)

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $108,254 were reported as deferred outflows of
resources related to OPEB and will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year
ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows. Average remaining services lives of all
employees provided with OPEB through the June 30, 2020 measurement date were 7.1390 years for

SCRHITF:
Measurement Period Fiscal Year Ending
Ending June 30, June 30,
2021 2022
2022 2023
2023 2024
2024 2025
2025 2026
Thereafter

41

SCRHITF

42,188
41,101
39,377
69,286
92,025
97,066

$

381,043




Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11. Interfund Activity

Interfund Balances - The Council's General fund and Special Revenue Funds have advanced money
between the funds to finance operations and supplement other fund sources. The repayment is made as
soon as receivables are collected. The advance is between governmental funds and is, therefore, not
reflected in the Statement of Net Position. The following summarizes interfund receivables and
payables at June 30, 2021:

Due to/due from Receivables Payable
General fund $ 519,469 $ -
Aging fund - 147,999
Transportation fund - 185,351
Workforce investment and Opportunity

Act fund - 491,979
Environmental contracts fund 364,763 -
Other non-major governmental funds - 58,903

Total $ 884,232 § 884,232

Interfund Transfers - The following summarizes interfund transfers for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2021:

Transfer In Transfer Out
General fund $ - $ 265,674
Aging fund 6,221 -
Transportation fund 175,720 -
Workforce investment and Opportunity

Act fund - 341
Environmental contracts fund -
Non-major governmental funds 84,074 -
Total $ 266,015 $ 266,015

The transfers between the General and Special Revenue Funds were made to meet grant matching
requirements and or to absorb deficits, if any, in any grant programs.

Note 12. Fund Balance Reservations and Designations
The Council uses the following governmental fund balance accounts:

Nonspendable for prepaid items — An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate
prepaid items are “not in spendable form” even though it is a component of current assets.

Nonspendable for security deposit — An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate
security deposit is “not in spendable form” even though it is a component of current assets.

42



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 12. Fund Balance Reservations and Designations (continued)

Assigned for special purposes general fund — Amounts assigned were approved by the Board of
Directors and are for the following purposes:

Building maintenance $ 101,185
Other purposes 133,845
Total $ 235,030
Unassigned:

This represents and includes all spendable amounts of the general fund not contained in the other
classifications.

Note 13. Risk Management
The Council is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Council pays an annual

premium to a private insurer for its insurance coverage.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and no settlements
have exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019.

Note 14. Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenues (those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue

recognition criteria have not been met due to being in advance of meeting eligibility requirements)
consist of the following:

Environmental Non-Major
WIOA Contracts Governmental
Aging Fund Fund Fund Funds
Unexpended carryover
amounts $ 42,957 $ 39,036 $ 358,728 § 9485

Note 15. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

During fiscal year 2021, a number of budgetary departments exceeded appropriated amounts as shown
in the budgetary comparison statement for the General Fund, Aging Fund, Transportation Fund,
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Fund, and Environmental Contracts Fund. The Council
was able to generate additional income to offset the current fiscal year’s excess expenditures. The
following departments had expenditures in the General Fund, Aging Fund, Transportation Fund,
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Fund, and Environmental Contracts Fund that exceeded
budgeted amounts as indicated in the Council’s Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget to Actual on pages 49-53.

43



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations (continued)

Actual (Over)
Budget Actual Budget

General Fund:

Capital outlay 40,000 41,909 (1,909)
Aging Special Revenue Fund:

Operations and maintenance 33,300 44,262 (10,962)

Consulting services 1,400 2,450 (1,050)

Other program expenses 5,000 543,016 (538,016)
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity

Special Revenue Fund:

Operations and maintenance 310,054 485,483 (175,429)

Note 16. Subsequent Events

The Council has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of
June 30, 2021 for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.
The evaluation was conducted through January 4, 2022, the date these financial statements were
available for issuance.

Subsequent to year end, the Delta variant of COVID-19 has significantly increased positive cases and
hospitalizations due to COVID-19; thus, the pandemic is still ongoing. These conditions could
adversely affect the Council’s business, financial condition, and results of operations. Further,
COVID-19 may result in health or other governmental authorities requiring the closure of the Council’s
operations or other businesses of the Council’s grantors, which could significantly disrupt the Council’s
operations. Management believes the Council is taking appropriate actions to address the potential
negative financial and operational impact of the pandemic. However, the full impact is unknown and
cannot be reasonably estimated as events continue to develop.

44



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Schedule of the Council's
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
South Carolina Retirement System
As of June 30,

Last Seven Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Council’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.0154450 % 0.0148510 % 0.015110 % 0.021368 % 0.026419 %
Council’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 3,946,361 3,391,082 3,385,630 4,810,280 $ 5,643,059
Council’s covered payroll 1,706,440 1,568,217 1,565,797 1,603,611 $ 2,155,935
Council’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as 23126 % 21624 % 21622 % 29997 % 26175 %
percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 50.71 % 54.40 % 54.10 % 5330 % 52.90 %
2016 2015
Council’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.033480 % 0.035090 %
Council’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 6,349,643 $ 6,041,355
Council’s covered payroll 2,558,308 $ 3,139,110
Council’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as 248.20 % 192.45 %
percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 83.00 % 59.90 %

Note: The amounts presented above were determined as of June 30th of the preceding year.

The Council implemented GASB Statement 68 and GASB Statement 71 with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the government will present

information for those years for which information is available.

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report

45



Central Midlands Council of Governments

Schedule of the Council's
Pension Contributions

South Carolina Retirement System

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Council's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of the covered payroll
Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Council's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of the covered payroll

As of June 30,

Last Seven Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

$ 269,509 $ 265,522 $ 228332 $ 212322 $ 282,951
269,509 265,522 228,332 212,322 282,951

$ - $ - 8 - 8 - 8 -

$ 1,732,063 $ 1,706,440 $ 1,568,217 $ 1,565,797 $ 1,603,211
15.56% 15.56% 14.56% 13.56% 17.65%
2016 2015

$ 342,163 $ 337,690
342,163 337,690

$ - 3 -

$ 2,155935 $ 2,558,308
13.37% 10.76%

The Council implemented GASB Statement 68 and GASB Statement 71 with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the
government will present information for those years for which information is available.

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report

46



Central Midlands Council of Governments
Schedule of the Council's
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability
South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund
As of June 30,
Last Five Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Council’s proportion of the collective net OPEB liability 0.000187 % 0.017931 % 0.018157 % 0.019016 % 0.019016 %
Council’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability $ 3,374,357 $ 2,711,441 $ 2,572,953 $ 2,575,686 $ 2,751,355
Council’s covered payroll $ 1,706,440 $ 1,568,217 $ 1,565,797 $ 1,603,611 $ 2,155,935
Council’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability as 19774 % 172.90 % 16432 % 160.62 % 12762 %
percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 839 % 8.44 % 791 % 7.60 % 6.62 %

Note: The amounts presented above were determined as of June 30th of the preceding year.
The Council implemented GASB Statement 75 with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the government will present information for those
years for which information is available.

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report

47



Contractually required contribution
Contributions in relation to the contractually required

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Council's covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of the covered payroll 6.25% 6.31% 6.03%

Central Midlands Council of Governments
Schedule of the Council's
Other Postemployment Benefits Contributions
South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund
As of June 30,
Last Five Fiscal Years

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$ 108254 $ 107,691 $ 94,592 $ 86,118 S 85,472
108,254 107,691 94,592 86,118 85,472
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
$ 1,732,063 $ 1,706,440 $ 1,568,217 $ 1,565,797 $ 1,603,611
5.50% 5.33%

The Council implemented GASB Statement 75 with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017.

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report

48

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
the government will present information for those years for which information is available.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Membership dues $ 594,466 $ 594,466 $ 594,466 $ -
State aid 140,814 140,814 70,407 (70,407)
Local revenue - - 1,411 1,411
Interest income 25 25 30 5
Other revenue - - - -

Total revenues 735,305 735,305 666,314 (68,991)
EXPENDITURES
Direct personnel costs 1,334,159 1,334,159 1,234,177 99,982
Indirect cost allocations (1,645,493) (1,645,493) (1,328,808) (316,685)
Support services:

Operations and maintenance 357,530 357,530 244,628 112,902

Travel and transportation 35,600 35,600 12,041 23,559

Consulting services 97,838 97,838 - 97,838
Capital outlay 40,000 40,000 41,909 (1,909)
Other program expenses 44,501 44,501 11,189 33,312

Total expenditures 264,135 264,135 215,136 48,999
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures 471,170 471,170 451,178 (19,992)
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers out (433,615) (433,615) (265,674) 167,941

Total other financing sources (uses) (433,615) (433,615) (265,674) 167,941
Net change in fund balance 37,555 37,555 185,504 $ 147,949
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,352,748 1,352,748 1,352,748
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,390,303 $ 1,390,303 $ 1,538,252

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

49



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - AGING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES

Federal revenue

State revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Direct personnel costs

Indirect cost allocations

Support services:
Operations and maintenance
Development and training
Travel and transportation
Consulting services

Payments to contractors

Other program expenses
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 4,288,097 4,288,097 4,109,087 $ (179,010)
447,945 447,945 557,028 109,083
4,736,042 4,736,042 4,666,115 (69,927)
1,003,118 1,003,118 480,091 523,027
294,935 294,935 450,096 (155,161)
33,300 33,300 44,262 (10,962)
17,000 17,000 3,216 13,784
22,200 22,200 18,753 3,447
1,400 1,400 2,450 (1,050)
3,365,062 3,365,062 3,130,452 234,610
5,000 5,000 543,016 (538,016)
4,742,015 4,742,015 4,672,336 69,679
(5,973) (5,973) (6,221) (248)
5,973 5,973 6,221 248
5,973 5,973 6,221 248
- - - $ -
$ - - -

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

50



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES

Federal revenue

Local revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Direct personnel costs

Indirect cost allocations

Support services:
Operations and maintenance
Development and training
Travel and transportation
Consulting services

Other program expenses

Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,745,644 1,745,644 1,116,351 $ (629,293)
106,250 106,250 37,132 (69,118)
1,851,894 1,851,894 1,153,483 (698,411)
574,918 574,918 255,692 319,226
172,476 172,476 306,063 (133,587)
57,900 57,900 18,809 39,091
12,000 12,000 50 11,950
15,600 15,600 47 15,553
1,000,000 1,000,000 748,542 251,458
19,000 19,000 - 19,000
1,851,894 1,851,894 1,329,203 522,691
- - (175,720) (175,720)
175,720 175,720
- - 175,720 175,720
- - - $ -
$ - - B,

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

51



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

REVENUES

Federal revenue

Local revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Direct personnel costs

Indirect cost allocations

Support services:
Operations and maintenance
Development and training
Travel and transportation
Consulting services

Payments to contractors

Other program expenses
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 4,722,119 $ 4,722,119 3,988,428 $ (733,691)
25,000 25,000 110,635 85,635
4,747,119 4,747,119 4,099,063 (648,056)
742,415 742,415 422,422 319,993
100,000 100,000 413,747 (313,747)
310,054 310,054 485,483 (175,429)
16,750 16,750 321 16,429
25,300 25,300 1,562 23,738
21,799 21,799 - 21,799
3,480,801 3,480,801 2,774,042 706,759
50,000 50,000 1,145 48,855
4,747,119 4,747,119 4,098,722 648,397
- - 341 341
(341) (341)
- - (341) (341)
- - - $ -
$ -8 - -

52

See accompanying independent auditor's report.



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRACTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

REVENUES
Federal revenue
Local revenue
Other revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Direct personnel costs

Indirect cost allocations

Support services:
Operations and maintenance
Development and training
Travel and transportation
Consulting services

Payments to contractors

Other program expenses
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,149 $ 2,149 3,858 $ 1,709
24,389 24,389 8,330 (16,059)
8,322 8,322 11,553 3,231
34,860 34,860 23,741 (11,119)
4,788 4,788 2,455 2,333
1,783 1,783 3,991 (2,208)
2,323 2,323 1,020 1,303
25,966 25,966 16,275 9,691
34,860 34,860 23,741 11,119
- - - $ -
$ - $ - -

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

53



S COTT ‘ + , C OMPANY = not your average accounting firm

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Central
Midlands Council of Governments (the “Council”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Council’s basic financial statements and
issued our report thereon dated January 4, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Council’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a
significant deficiency.

1441 Main Street, Suite 800 PHONE: (803) 256-6021 | FAX: (803) 256-8346 Post Office Box 8388
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 www.scottandco.com Columbia, South Carolina 29202



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Council’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Council’s Response to Findings

The Council’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The Council’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Council’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Columbia, South Carolina
January 4, 2022

55



S- COTT ‘ + ) C OMPANY = not your average accounting firm

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Columbia, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Central Midlands Council of Governments’ (the “Council”) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the Council’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The
Council's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Council’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Council’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Council’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Council complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2021.

1441 Main Street, Suite 800 PHONE: (803) 256-6021 | FAX: (803) 256-8346 Post Office Box 8388
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 wwiw.scottandco.com Columbia, South Carolina 29202



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Council's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
did identity a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The Council’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Council’s response was not subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Columbia, South Carolina
January 4, 2022

57



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2021

Federal Pass through Expenditures
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Grantor to Federal
Program Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct Programs
EDA Planning 1/1/2019-12/31/2021 11.302 $ - 76,120
EDA Planning 7/1/2020 -6/30/2022 11.307 - 7,933
Total U.S. Department of Commerce - 84,053
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Passed through S.C. Department of Commerce
Regional Planning 14.228 4-RP-18-00-4 - 49,775
CDBG Administration - Whitemire Church Street Water Upgrade 14.228 4-CL-18-013 - 19,230
CDBG Administration 14.228 4-CL-19-016 - 2,234
CDBG Administration 14.228 4-CE-18-008 - 10,864
CDBG Administration 14.228 4-CE-19-009 - 5,623
CDBG Administration 14.228 4-NR-19-001 - 3,168
CDBG Administration 14.228 N/A - 844
CDBG Administration 14.228 N/A - 598
Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Develop t - 92,336
US Department of Labor
Passed through S.C. Department of Employment & Workforce (SCDEW)
WIOA Cluster
WIOA - Adult 17.258 19A005 20A005 820,761 1,168,150
WIOA - Youth 17.259 19Y005 20Y005 737,013 1,133,780
WIOA - Dislocated Worker 17.278 19DW005 20DW005 840,425 1,240,103
State Workforce Development Board Restoration Funds 17.259 20SRY05 17,820 17,820
Continuous Improvement Grant 17.259 20CIG05 - 68,878
Rapid Response Additional Assistance 17.278 19RRA05 190,232 190,232
Rapid Response Incumbent Worker Training - Green Energy Biofuel 17.278 19RRIWTO8 12,870 13,804
Rapid Response Additional Assistance COVID 17.278 19RRCO05 63,813 63,813
Rapid Response Incumbent Worker Training - Buck Enterprises 17.278 19RRIWT09 15,750 16,489
Rapid Response Incumbent Worker Training - JB Martin Company 17.278 20RRIWTO07 37,859 37,859
Rapid Response Incumbent Worker Training - Elite Tool and Design, Inc. 17.278 20RRIWTO8 37,500 37,500
Total WIOA Cluster Passed through SCDEW 2,774,043 3,988,428
Total U.S. Department of Labor 2,774,043 3,988,428
U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration
Direct Programs
Federal Transit Cluster
Section 5307 20.507 - 2,557
Section 5307-2 20.507 - 55,441
Section 5307 20.507 165,511 165,511
Section 5307 20.507 70,797 70,797
Total Federal Transit Formula Grants Cluster 236,308 294,306
Transit Service Cluster
Section 5310-1A 20.513 - 52,253
Section 5310-1A 20.513 - 140,892
Section 5310-1A 20.513 - 74,554
Total Transit Service Cluster - 267,699

See acompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and accompanying independent auditor's report.

58




CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2021

Federal Pass through Expenditures
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Grantor to Federal
Program Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures
Passed through SC Department of Transportation
Highway Planning & Construction Cluster
FHWA Planning 20.205 CMCOG P039965 - 469,346
Rural Planning 20.205 COATS P039940 - 85,000
Total Highway Planning & Construction Cluster Passed through SCDOT - 554,346
Total U.S. Department of Transportation - 1,116,351
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through S.C. Department of Health & Environmental Control (SCDHEC)
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster
The Three Rivers Watershed Based Plan 66.468 EQ-0-551 - 45,001
208 Water Quality Management Planning 66.454 EQ-0-277 - 3,858
Water Quality Management Planning 66.454 EQ-1-100 - 12,796
Total Passed through SCDHEC - 61,655
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - 61,655
US Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through S.C. Department on Aging
Aging Cluster
Preferred Community Health Parnters 93.044 * None provided - 1,469
Veterans Pilot Grant 93.044 * L060A00010 - 1,950
Title IIIB Planning & Administration 93.044 * L060A00010 - 106,961
Title IIIB Ombudsman 93.044 * L060B00010 - 347,874
Title ITIB Supportive Services 93.044 * L060A00010 495,086 600,170
COVID-19 93.045 50002000 9,852 9,852
ADRC COVID 93.045 N/A 50,000 50,000
Title ITIC Nutrition Services 93.045 * L060A00010 984,648 984,648
Total Aging Cluster 1,539,586 2,102,924
Title VII Elder Abuse 93.041 * L060B00010 - 206
Title VII Ombudsman 93.042 * L060B00010 - 18,116
Title IIID Preventative Health/Medication Management 93.043 L060B00010 40,512 40,512
HCFACI18 93.048 90MPPG0007-04-00 - 67,801
Title IITE Planning & Administration 93.052 * L060A00010 - 8,236
CARES OMB 93.052 * L060B00010 - 33,500
CARES FCG 93.052 * L060A00010 179,641 179,641
Title IIIE Caregiver 93.052 * L06A00010 292,353 302,485
CARES HDM S8 93.052 * 51C10013 1,306,980 1,306,980
I-CARE 93.324 90ASPG0110-01-00 - 1,424
SHIAP 93.324 90SAPG0043-00 - 47,262
Total Passed through S.C. Department on Aging 1,819,486 2,006,163
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 3,359,072 4,109,087
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 - 28,304
Total U.S. Department of Commerce - 28,304
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 6,133,115 $ 9,480,214

* Audited as major program

See acompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and accompanying independent auditor's report.

59



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note A — General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) presents the activity
of all federal award programs of the Central Midlands Council of Governments (the “Council”) for the
year ended June 30, 2021. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as those
passed through other government agencies, are included on the Schedule.

Note B — Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Council under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The
information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (‘“Uniform Guidance”). Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the financial statements.
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Council, it is not intended
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Council.

Note C — Relationship to Basic Financial Statements
Federal award expenditures are reported in the Council’s basic financial statements as expenditures in
the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule agree
with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports except for timing differences related
to expenditures made subsequent to the filing of the federal financial reports. Matching costs, i.e. the
non-federal share of certain program costs, are not included in the accompanying schedule.
Note D - Contingencies
The Council receives funds under various federal grant programs, and such awards are to be expended
in accordance with the provisions of the various grants. Compliance with the grants is subject to audit
by various government agencies which may impose sanctions in the event of non-compliance.
Note E — Major Programs and Clusters
* Denotes major programs
As defined in the Uniform Guidance, WIOA, Federal Transit, and Aging programs are considered to
be clusters of programs and, accordingly, have been classified as one program for testing purposes.
The Aging cluster has been defined as a major program.
Note F — Indirect Cost
The Council uses a restricted indirect cost rate between 29.25% and 30.39% depending on grant year

that is used for its federal programs and did not use the 10% de Minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance and covered in 2 CFR Part 200.414.

60



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section I—Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements were prepared in accordance with
GAAP: Unmodified.

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weaknesses identified? None reported
o Significant deficiencies identified? Yes
e Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? None reported

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:
e  Material weaknesses identified? No

o Significant deficiencies identified? None Reported

e Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Type of report the auditor issued on compliance with major federal programs: Unmodified.

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
93.044 and 93.045 Aging Cluster /
Title III Planning & Administration
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title II1,
Part E

Dollar threshold used to be distinguished between Type A and Type B Programs:  $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

61



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section II - Financial Statement Findings:

Conditions Considered to be a Significant Deficiency
2021-001 — Balance Sheet Accounts Reconciliation

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to ensure that the amounts reported as balance sheet accounts
balances, such as fund balance, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable and unearned revenue
are appropriate and properly valued, in order to make financial reports generated by the accounting system
as correct as possible. Internal controls should be in place to ensure that the general ledger accounts for
accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable and unearned revenue are reconciled to detailed reports
on a monthly basis.

Condition: Internal controls were not sufficient to detect misstatements in the reporting of some of the
Council’s balance sheet accounts.

Context/Cause: During the preliminary review of initial trial balance provided for the audit we noted that
certain balance sheet accounts appeared to be higher or lower than expected. Additionally, we noted that
several beginning balances did not agree with prior year audited financial statements. We asked the
management to review these accounts and to make necessary adjustments to correct these balances.
Ultimately, fund balance and net position were overstated by approximately $61,000, unearned revenue
was understated by approximately $19,000, and capital assets understated by approximately $34,000 before
depreciation.

Effects: Management was required to make adjusting journal entries to properly report balances of fund
balance, unearned revenue, and capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Recommendation: We recommend the Council carefully review its accounts reconciliation procedures to
ensure all transactions are reported in the proper period in accordance with GAAP. These reconciliations
will ensure meaningful and accurate financial statements. Additionally, we recommend that management
post all audit adjustments at the end of the audit period, and beginning fund balances of the subsequent
fiscal year should be agreed with audited financial statements. The financial statements can then be used to
help in the management decision-making process. A benefit of monthly reconciliations is that errors do not
accumulate but can be identified and attributed to a particular period, which makes it easier to perform
future reconciliations.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

None Reported.

62



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings:

Finding 2020-001 - Financial Closeout and Reporting

Condition: Internal controls were not sufficient to detect certain misstatements in the preparation of year-
end adjustments and reconciliations.

Current Status: The Finance Department developed additional policies and procedures, including a
closeout checklist for monthly and year-end financial activities. Checklist items are tracked and reviewed
on a regular basis. No similar findings were noted in the 2021 audit.

Finding 2020-002 — Balance Sheet Accounts Reconciliation

Condition: Internal controls were not sufficient to detect misstatements in the reporting some of the
Council’s balance sheet accounts.

Current Status: We found that corrective action was taken on the above finding for fiscal year 2021;
however, it was not sufficient to remove the finding. We have repeated finding 2020-002 as finding 2021-
001 for fiscal year 2021, but as a significant deficiency rather than a material weakness.

Finding 2020-003 — Strengthen Control Over Cash Management

Federal Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration

Program Title and CFDA Number: Federal Transit — Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program
(20.507)

Federal Award numbers and Year: SC-37-X027-00 (2014), SC-2018-029-00 (2018), SC-90-X0292-00
(2015), SC-90-X257-00 (2012), SC-90-X274-00 (2013)

Compliance Requirement: Cash management

Type of Finding: Material weakness, noncompliance

Questioned Costs: $0

Repeat Finding: No

Condition: Of the 10 cash drawdowns that were selected for testing, the independent auditor noted seven
instances in which the drawdown was performed prior to payment of the related invoice. Total payments
for the seven invoices noted above were $918,193.

Current Status: The Council implemented policies and procedures requiring requests for reimbursements

to be drawn-down by one designated member of the Finance Department, improving documentation
related to the process. No similar findings were noted in the 2021 audit.

63



CENTRAL MIDLANDS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
JUNE 30, 2021

Finding 2021-001 (Repeated Finding 2020-002) — Balance Sheet Accounts Reconciliation

Name of Contact Person Responsible for the Corrective Action Plan:

Petula Hendley, Director of Financial Management and Support Services

Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Department will continue to apply the implemented
policies and procedures to include a monthly Balance Sheet Reconciliation Report on a monthly
basis to include review of all outstanding balances, corrections and/or adjustments. The monthly
reconciliation will be completed by a designated staff member of Finance and final approval will
be conducted by the Director of Financial Management and Support Services.

Anticipated Completion Date: April 1, 2021

64



CENTRAL

MIDLANDS

Council of Governments

January 28, 2022

Mrs. Yvette G. Taylor

Region IV Regional Administrator
Federal Transit Administration
230 Peachtree, NW

Suite 800

Atlanta, GA 30303

RE: CMCOG Authorization of Section 5307 Funds
Dear Mrs. Taylor:

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) has a Memorandum of Understandings (MOUSs) that
describes the cooperative working relationship with the following two organizations, the Central Midlands Regional
Transit Authority (CMRTA) and the Santee Wateree Regional Transit Authority (SWRTA). These MOUs recognize
that each year most of the FTA grant dollars that are received by CMCOG as the designated recipient, will be required
by the direct recipients, for the provision of public transit services. CMCOG will require some continuing FTA funding
to meet our responsibilities under MAP-21and the FAST Act as a Metropolitan Planning Organization.

Each direct recipient may be preparing grant applications for Section 5307 funds for their maintenance, administration
and capital needs. We are providing this letter to authorize the amount of formula funding that each direct recipient
may apply for prior to formally submitting their grant applications. We authorize the following Section 5307 funding
amount for the purpose of direct recipients grant applications:

FY 2021 - $5.246,654 of $5.496.654

CMCOG will be reserving $250,000 in FY 2021 for planning and/or JARC projects. CMRTA is authorized to apply for
the remaining funds. Please be advised that as identified in this Split Letter, the CMCOG, as the Designated Recipient,
authorizes the assignment/allocation of Section 5307 to the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority, herein known
as a Direct Recipient. Please be advised that the Santee Wateree Regional Transit Authority, herein known as a Direct
Recipient has declined funding for this fiscal year. The undersigned agree to the Split Letter and the amounts
allocated/assigned to each Direct Recipient. Each Direct Recipient is responsible for its application to the Federal
Transit Administration to receive Section 5307 funds and assumes the responsibilities associated with any award for
these funds.

We fully support the Direct Recipient(s) application(s) for the amount stated above. Please feel free to contact me at
803-376-5390 if you need any additional information or if you have any questions. Thank you for your time and
interest in this matter.

Sincerely,

Benjamin J. Mauldin
Executive Director

cc: Reginald Simmons
Derrick Huggins
Lottie Jones
Petula Hendley

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 (803) 376-5390 FAX(803) 376-5394 Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



January 28, 2022

Mrs. Yvette G. Taylor

Region IV Regional Administrator
Federal Transit Administration
230 Peachtree, NW

Suite 800

Atlanta, GA 30303

RE: CMCOG Authorization of Section 5339 Funds
Dear Mrs. Taylor:

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) has a Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) that
describes the cooperative working relationship with the following two organizations, the Central Midlands Regional
Transit Authority (CMRTA) and the Santee Wateree Regional Transit Authority (SWRTA). These MOUs recognize
that each year most of the FTA grant dollars that are received by CMCOG as the designated recipient, will be required
by the direct recipients, for the provision of public transit services. CMCOG will require some continuing FTA funding
to meet our responsibilities under MAP-21and the FAST Act as a Metropolitan Planning Organization.

Each direct recipient may be preparing grant applications for Section 5339 funds for their capital needs. We are
providing this letter to authorize the amount of formula funding that each direct recipient may apply for prior to
formally submitting their grant applications. We authorize the following Section 5339 funding amount for the purpose
of direct recipients grant applications:

FY 2021 - $586,728 of $586,728

Please be advised that as identified in this Split Letter, the CMCOG, as the Designated Recipient, authorizes the
assignment/allocation of Section 5339 to the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority, herein known as a Direct
Recipient. Please be advised that the Santee Wateree Regional Transit Authority, herein known as a Direct Recipient
has declined funding for this fiscal year. The undersigned agree to the Split Letter and the amounts allocated/assigned
to each Direct Recipient. Each Direct Recipient is responsible for its application to the Federal Transit Administration to
receive Section 5339 funds and assumes the responsibilities associated with any award for these funds.

We fully support the Direct Recipient(s) application(s) for the amount stated above. Please feel free to contact me at
803-744-5133 if you need any additional information or if you have any questions. Thank you for your time and
interest in this matter.

Sincerely,

Benjamin J. Mauldin
Executive Director

cc: Petula Hendley
Reginald Simmons
Derrick Huggins
Lottie Jones

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 (803) 376-5390 FAX(803)376-5394 Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



Memorandum

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director
DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: 2021 Congestion Management Plan

REQUESTED ACTION

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to adopt the 2021 Congestion
Management Plan. The full document is available on our website at: http://centralmidlands.org/wp-
content/uploads/COATS-2021-CMP_1-3-22.pdf

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

The Congestion Management Plan (CMP) is an integral component of the metropolitan transportation
planning process as it helps to identify areas with high congestion (as a complement to the travel demand
modeling process) and recommends appropriate mitigation strategies that manage travel demand, reduce
single occupancy vehicle (SOV) usage, and improve travel conditions without having to add roadway
capacity. When capacity improvement projects are warranted, the CMP provides recommendations for
facilitating future travel demand management strategies and operational improvements that will help
maintain the functional integrity and safety of the roadway once additional travel lanes are added. The
Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS) Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has developed a
CMP to meet the unique needs of the Columbia metropolitan area.

Staff will request adoption of the 2045 LRTP.

ATTACHMENT
CMP Resolution

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 (803)376-5390 FAX(803) 376-5394 Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org



RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUMBIA AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION ADOPTING THE CONGESTION
MANAGEMENT PROCESS (CMP)

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) has been designated by the Governor
of South Carolina as the Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS) Metropolitan Planning Organization
(MPO) responsible, together with the State, for the comprehensive, continuing, and cooperative
transportation planning process for the Columbia Urbanized Area; and,

WHEREAS, the federal surface transportation programs that are the responsibility of the Central Midlands
Council of Governments are authorized by the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act (Pub. L.
112-141, December 4, 2015) and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act executed on November 15,
2021; and,

WHEREAS, the metropolitan transportation planning process shall provide for the establishment and use of
a performance-based approach to transportation decision making to support the national goals described in 23
U.S.C. 150(b) and the general purposes described in 49 U.S.C. 5301(c); and,

WHEREAS, the Columbia urbanized area includes all or portions of Richland, Lexington, Kershaw,
Calhoun, Newberry, and Fairfield Counties; and

WHEREAS, Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization administers
metropolitan planning process which includes the development and implementation of the Long Range
Transportation Plan, Unified Planning Work Program, and the Transportation Improvement Program for the
Columbia Urbanized Area; and,

WHEREAS, the Congestion Management Process (CMP) is an integral component of the metropolitan
transportation planning process as it helps to identify areas with high congestion (as a complement to the
travel demand modeling process) and recommends appropriate mitigation strategies that manage travel
demand, reduce single occupancy vehicle (SOV) usage, and improve travel conditions without having to add
roadway capacity.

WHEREAS, the Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization has developed a
Congestion Management Process that has been provided for review to the general public, the Columbia Area
Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Committees and the Policy Committee.

Serving Local Governmentsin South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 [1 (803) 376-5390 [1 FAX (803) 376-5394 [1 Web Site: http://www.centralmidlands.org




Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan
Planning Organization that the:

1. The Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization has developed a
Congestion Management Process in coordination, collaboration, and consultation with the
development of the Long Range Transportation Plan; and

2. The Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization has developed a
Congestion Management Process in coordination, collaboration, and consultation with the South
Carolina Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, and Federal Highway
Administration; and

3. The Columbia Area Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization Policy Committee
and Advisory Committees have reviewed and endorsed the Congestion Management Process.

CERTIFICATE, the undersigned, is the duly qualified Executive Director of the Central Midlands Council
of Governments, and hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a
meeting of the Central Midlands Council of Governments held on

Foster Senn, Chairman Benjamin J. Mauldin, Executive Director
Central Midlands Council of Governments Central Midlands Council of Governments

Witness Witness



Enclosure 7

CENTRAL
MIDILANDS

Council of Governments

MEMORANDUM

TO: CMCOG Board of Directors
FROM: Gregory Sprouse, Director of Research, Planning, and Development
DATE: January 20, 2022

SUBJECT: Major 208 Plan Amendment: Town of Eastover WWTP Expansion

CMCOG staff will introduce a 208 plan amendment request for the expansion of the
Eastover Wastewater Treatment Plant from 0.75 MGD to 1.2MGD. The Eastover facility
discharges into the Wateree River and provides treatment service for Southeast
Richland County and the Town of Eastover. The 208 Plan for the Central Midlands
Region requires a major plan amendment for the expansion of existing wastewater
treatment plants which will be expanded by at least 50% of their current design
capacity. 208 Plan amendment submission requirements and a preliminary engineering
report are attached. Representatives from Richland County Utilities will be available at
the board meeting to answer questions about the project.

The CMCOG Environmental Planning Advisory Committee (EPAC) recommended
approval of the 208 Plan amendment at their January 19, 2022 meeting.

Attachments:
208 Plan Amendment Submission Requirements
Preliminary Engineering Report

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina’s Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 e (803) 376-5390 e Fax (803) 376-5394 @ www.centralmidlands.org



RICHLAND COUNTY GOVERNMENT

UTILITIES DEPARTMENT &
7525 Broad River Road, Columbia, SC 29063 |
T803-401-0050 | F 803-401-0030 | TDD 803-576-2045 .
rcu_service@richlandcountysc.gov | richlandcountysc.gov

January 12, 2022
Mr. Gregory Sprouse, AICP
Director of Research, Planning, and Development
Central Midlands Council of Governments
236 Stoneridge Drive
Columbia, SC 29210

Re: 208 Plan Amendment Request
Eastover WWTP

Dear Mr. Sprouse,

We would like to request a Plan Amendment to the “208 Water Quality Management Plan for the
Central Midlands Region”. This amendment is requested to allow Richland County Utilities (RCU) to
discharge 1.2 MGD to the Wateree River from the Eastover WWTP. Several modifications will be
conducted at the Eastover WWTP to support the increase in flow. Along with this letter, the CMCOG
has been provided a 208 WQM Plan Amendment Request document including necessary information
as called out in Section 3 Administrative Procedures of the WQM Plan. The PER and PER approval
letter from SCDHEC is attached with the 208 WQM Plan Amendment Request document.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any
questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

ot

William (Bill) H. Davis, PE
Director

Richland County Government
Utilities Department

Attachment

Cc:  Joseph McGougan, PE, MBD Consulting Engineers, P.A.

-)) Efficiency - Effectiveness - Equity - Integrity



208 WATER QUALITY
MANAGEMENT PLAN

CENTRAL MIDLANDS REGION
PLAN AMENDMENT SUBMISSION
WATEREE RIVER BASIN

EASTOVER WWTP
RICHLAND COUNTY, SC

SUBMITTED BY':
Richland County Utilities

January 2022

PREPARED BY:

911 Norman Alley
Conway, SC 29526
MBD Project No. 320011



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES

JANUARY 2022
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section 1 Detailed Description and Scope of Project
1.1 Background
1.2 Request for Amendment to the 208 WQM Plan
Section 2 Preliminary Engineering Data Regarding Facility Design and Cost
2.1 General
Section 3 Financing Strategy and/or Feasibility Analysis
3.1 General
Section 4 Potential Fiscal or Engineering Impact on Existing Facilities
4.1 General
Section 5 Associated Environmental Risks or Impact
5.1 General
Section 6 Project Justification or Need
6.1 General
Section 7 Summary Examination of Alternative Options
7.1 General
Section 8 Timing and Phasing of the Project
8.1 General
8.2 Proposed Timing and Phasing



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 1
DETAILED DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF PROJECT

1.1 BACKGROUND

This 208 WQM Plan Amendment Request (this “Request”) contains the submittal by Richland County
Utilities (RCU) for an amendment to the current 208 Water Quality Management Plan for the Central
Midlands Region originally adopted February 27, 1997, as amended (the “208 WQM Plan”).

The existing Eastover WWTP is a 0.75 MGD rated facility and discharges to the Wateree River. This
submittal will request that an increase to 1.2 MGD be allowed to discharge to the Wateree River. Several
piping, pump, and chemical feed modifications will be conducted at the plant to support the increase in
flow and will provide a foundation for future increases in flow.

1.2 REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT TO 208 WOM PLAN

Section 3 Administrative Procedures of the 208 WQM Plan provides guidelines for Plan Amendment
Submission Requests, as well as Review Criteria for evaluating a Plan Amendment Submittal.

Proposed Amendment. This Request contains the submittal by RCU for a proposed amendment to the
current 208 WQM Plan to increase the discharge of the Eastover WWTP to 1.2 MGD to the Wateree
River in Richland County. This proposed amendment is referred to herin as the “Proposed 208
Amendment.” The estimated cost of this expansion would be $340,000.

The Project. The proposed project will include several modifications to the plant to accommodate the
increase to 1.2 MGD. These upgrades include modifying the V-notch weirs at the headworks to be 45
degrees, installing mixers in three of the four anaerobic basins, installing a mixer in Oxidation Basin #2,
replacing the existing floating decanter making repairs at the digester, replacing gate valves and the
effluent pipe coupling at the chlorine contact chamber, and upgrading instrumentation to ensure proper
flow measurement and monitoring of effluent discharge. A coagulant will be introduced on an as needed
basis to precipitate phosphorus to stay within the total loading allowed. Equipment throughout the process
will also be serviced and maintained as necessary.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 2
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING DATA REGARDING FACILITY
DESIGN AND COST

2.1 GENERAL

A Preliminary Engineering Report for the Project has been prepared by Joseph. W. McGougan, P.E.,
MBD Consulting Engineers, P.A. (“MBD”), and is attached as “Appendix A”, included as a separate
document, and incorporated into this Request. Project description, location, design, and additional
information is included in the PER. The PER was approved by SCDHEC on October 5, 2021. The copy
of the approval letter is attached.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 3
FINANCING STRATEGY AND/OR FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS

3.1 GENERAL

RCU will be responsible for financing the proposed Project. RCU has been working to update the

equipment listed in the PER. Overall cost for upgrade will be paid through O&M budget for the Eastover
facility.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES

JANUARY 2022
SECTION 4
POTENTIAL FISCAL/ENGINEERING IMPACT ON EXISTING
FACILITIES

4.1 GENERAL

This Project will have no fiscal or engineering impact on existing wastewater facilities, as RCU is the
only authorized service provider in the area. There will be no impact to receiving streams as there was no
increase in the discharge parameters listed in the NPDES permit.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 5
ASSOCIATED ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS OR IMPACTS

5.1 GENERAL
There are no known environmental risks or impacts expected from this Project. The improvements will not

require any land disturbance activities. The discharge to the Wateree River will not change as there were
no changes to the discharge limits.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 6
PROJECT JUSTIFICATION OR NEED

6.1 GENERAL

Based on data obtained from CMCOG “2050 Population Projection Report,” East Richland is projected to
grow continuously and by upwards of 50% from the current population by 2050. With the population
growth and improved infrastructure, industries can potentially move into this area as well. RCU will be
adding customers from City of Columbia’s service area too. These potential sources of wastewater will
require the Eastover WWTP to expand to 1.2 MGD. The proposed upgrade will establish a good foundation
for the future expansion.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 7
SUMMARY EXAMINATION OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

7.1 GENERAL
An antidegradation analysis was conducted by MBD and a detailed review of the alternatives is included

in the PER, which is attached hereto. Alternatives such as conservation, reclaimed water use, land
application, and discharge to other systems were considered.



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST
RICHLAND COUNTY UTILITIES
JANUARY 2022

SECTION 8
TIMING AND PHASING OF THE PROJECT

8.1 GENERAL

This Project is a high priority for the Eastover WWTP and RCU. Work would begin as soon as possible.
This will provide Eastover with enough time to prepare for future expansion.

8.2 PROPOSED TIMING AND PHASING

Listed below is the anticipated schedule for this Project:
*  Submission of the PER for upgrade approved by SCDHEC — October 2021
e  Submission of the proposed 208 WQM Plan Amendment — January 2022
*  Submission of Detailed Plans and Specifications for the WWTP Modification — April 2022
* Begin Modification on WWTP — August 2022
*  Complete Modification and Startup of WWTP — August 2023



208 WQM PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST — CENTRAL MIDLANDS REGION
PALMETTO UTILITIES, INC. — SPEARS CREEK WWTP
SEPTEMBER 2015

APPENDIX A
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

Attached as a separate document

A-1



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO
1.2 MGD

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

Prepared for
Richland County

March 2021

=

=

-
=

911 Norman Alley
Conway, SC 29526



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

MARCH 2021
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 General Information

L1 Introduction

12 Project Description

13 Qualifications
Section 2 Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility

21 General

2.2 Existing WWTP Facility Evaluation
221 Headworks

2.2.2  Oxidation Ditches

2.2.3  C(Clarifiers

224 Digester

2.2.5 Chlorine Contact

Section 3 Antidegradation Analysis
31 General
32 Antidegradation Analysis
3.21  Service Area
3.2.2  Waste Load Allocation
3.2.3  Reasonable Alternatives
3.2.31 Conservation
3.2.3.2 Reclaimed Water Use
3.2.3.3 Land Application
3.2.3.4 Discharge to Other Systems

33 Summary
Section 4 Nutrient Evaluation
41 General

4.2 Nutrient Evaluation

421  Waste Load Allocation

422 Reasonable Alternatives

4221 Share Load with County’s Broad River Plant

4.2.2.2 Share Load with Other Plants

4.2.2.3 Pursue Additional Allocation for Individual Permitees

4.2.2.4 Reallocation Request via the Central Midlands COG

4.2.2.5 Find a Phosphorus Offset via Negotiation with Other Phosphorus Sources

4.3 Summary
Section 5 Proposed Facility Upgrade
5.1 General
52 Proposed Wastewater Treatment Expansion

521 Headworks

5.2.2  Anaerobic Basins and Oxidation Ditches
5.2.3  Clarifiers and Digester

5.2.4  Chlorine Contact

5.2.5 Instrumentation and Testing

5.2.6  Nutrient Loading



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

Appendix
Appendix A - Design Calculations
Appendix B — Wasteload Allocation



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

11

1.2

13

SECTION 1
GENERAL INFORMATION

INTRODUCTION

This Preliminary Engineering Report addresses the improvements proposed for the expansion of
the Eastover WWTP including an expansion of the capacity and required upgrades to handle the
increased flow.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Eastover WWTP Upgrade project will include the upgrade in the capacity of the Eastover
WWTP from 0.75 MGD to 1.2 MGD along with repairs and additions to existing systems. A brief
description of each project is listed below:

e The screen spray system will be repaired, and the influent V-notch weir used for flow
measurement will be increased from 22.5 degrees to 45 degrees.

e Mixers will be installed on 3 of the 4 anaerobic basins with a Davits crane on each mixer,
along with a mixer guide rail on basin 1. A mixer will also be installed in Oxidation Basin
2. The automatic control system will be repaired on the oxidation ditches.

o The floating decanter in the digester will be repaired.

e The effluent pump will be placed into service and the discharge pipe coupling will be
replaced.

e A permanent refrigerated sampler will be installed at the headworks and upgraded
instrumentation will installed to ensure proper measurement of flow and effluent
discharge.

e An evaluation of the existing equipment performance will be reviewed prior to increasing
the flow.

A detailed description of the upgrades and improvements are included in Section 4.

QUALIFICATIONS

This report was prepared by MBD Consulting Engineers, P.A. MBD reserves the right to review
any additional data or supplemental comments regarding the contents of this document and revise
the document accordingly.




EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

21

2.2

221

222

223

224

SECTION 2
EXISTING WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY

GENERAL

The existing Eastover WWTP is a 0.75 MGD rated facility and discharges to the Wateree River.
This report demonstrates the ability to increase the flow capacity of the facility to 1.2 MGD and
set the foundation for possible further expansion of the facility.

Listed below is a description of the existing processes at the WWTP.
EXISTING WWTP DESCRIPTION

Included below is a description of individual process at the existing Eastover Wastewater
Treatment facility.

Headworks

The existing headworks is an elevated structure to which all the influent flow is pumped from
offsite pump stations. The headworks includes an automatic debris screen and a manual bypass
screen. The automatic screen is a sloped punch plate screen with brush and auger to remove debris
from the influent flow train. The headworks does not include grit removal. Flow from the
headworks is discharged into a chamber of the headworks where excessive flows can be bypassed.
Flow from the headworks is divided via two weirs into an effluent box that discharges into the
anoxic zone of the oxidation ditch system. The influent V-notch weirs are at 22.5 degrees.

Oxidation Ditches

The oxidation ditch design includes two racetrack style oxidation ditches, each with a dedicated
anoxic zone. Discharge from the headworks and the returned sludge from the clarifiers is
introduced into the anoxic zone. Each anoxic zone includes two mixers. The oxidation ditch
includes two openings that allow a portion of the oxidation ditch flows to pass through the anoxic
basin.

Each oxidation ditch includes a vertical type mixer. The two basins utilize a common wall
construction and the discharge weir for the two basins are located on the end of the basin opposite
from the anoxic zone. Manual adjustable weirs are used to collect discharge from the oxidation
basins into the clarification units.

Clarifiers

The existing treatment process includes two sloped bottom clarifiers. The two clarifiers have a
combined surface area of 3,926 SE. The existing basins include sludge draw off piping that is
divided into RAS return to the anoxic zone of the oxidation ditch and a WAS discharge to the
digester located adjacent to the oxidation ditches.

Digester

The existing digester has a maximum volume of 161,568 gallons. The digester has a floating
decanter to provide thickening. The decanter is in disrepair with a leak in the draw off hose. The
digester also has fine bubble diffusion located on the bottom of the basin for aeration and mixing.



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

2.2.5 Chlorine Contact
Flow from the two clarifiers enter the two-stage chlorine contact chamber for disinfection to take
place. Sodium Bisulfate is used to dechlorinate the water. Treated flow is released over an effluent
weir and then discharged through the effluent pipe to the Wateree River.



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

MARCH 2021

| T

0 = |

- .
1) SO ... 1 — — -
[ ONIMYAO QH0D3Y ]
= P

|

_ "

| m

_ Fil

: i

| T~

1

|

|

_




EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

3.1

3.2

3.21

322

323

3231

SECTION 3
ANTIDEGRADATION EVALVUATION

GENERAL

In accordance with Regulation 61-68, entitled “Water Classifications and Standards,” proposed or
expanding discharges to “high quality” surface water can only be permitted if the Department
finds, after intergovernmental coordination and public participation, that allowing lower water
quality is necessary to important economic and social development in the areas where the waters
are located. “High Quality” waters are those water whose quality exceeds levels necessary to
support propagation of fish, shellfish, and wildlife, and recreation in and on the water. The
Wateree River qualifies for this designation.

The proposed increase to 1.2 MGD does not propose to “lower water quality” as the total UOD
discharged to the Wateree River will not exceed the amount permitted.

Information included below provides the antidegradation review for the discharge from the
Eastover WWTP to the Wateree River.

ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS

The antidegradation analysis will review the increase in any permitted pollutant loading, the
discharge of a pollutant not currently discharged or any increase in the mass of a pollutant. This
analysis will include a review of the domestic service area, the waste load allocation, and
reasonable alternatives for the discharge to the Wateree River.

Service Area

The service area has been presented in previous studies and reviews with DHEC. In addition to
the existing service area, an estimated 1200 new REUs along with portions of the Hopkins and
Columbia area will be served by the WWTP upgrade and discharge to the Wateree River.

Waste Load Allocation

A waste load allocation was performed on the discharge to the Wateree River at a volume of 0.75
MGD. The waste load allocation established a UOD loading for the Wateree River, as well as other
constituents. The total waste load allocation for the Wateree River will not be increased based on
the increase in discharge from 0.75 MGD to 1.2 MGD. The treatment process will be capable of
meeting current waste load allocation including the UOD provided in the draft NPDES permit
allowing for a 1.2 MGD discharge to the Wateree River. Appendix B includes the WLA provided
by SCDHEC.

Reasonable Alternatives

The antidegradation analysis must review technologically feasible alternatives that are available
for reducing or eliminating discharge to the surface water. These items include conservation, the
use of reclaimed water, land application, and discharge to other treatment systems. Each of these
items will be discussed below.

Conservation

Current building codes in the Richland County area presently require low flow devices, which is
the primary component of conservation systems in residential use and discharge of wastewater. In
addition, the design and manufacturer of household appliances have improved the efficiency in



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

323.2

3233

3234

33

conservation of water. RCU does not have the ordinance authority over the service area; however,
the current building codes and ordinances for Richland County addresses the need and ongoing
utilization of conservation activities within residential construction.

Reclaimed Water Use

At the current time, there were no industrial clients available that could utilize the effluent from
the treatment plant. Effluent can also be made available for any reuse systems such as irrigation in
the future.

Land Application

The option of buying land and setting up the necessary processes to discharge the effluent was
evaluated and determined to be cost prohibitive. The cost of land in the area is expensive and
overall availability of applicable land would be hard to find. If land could be found for a reasonable
price, the cost associated with setting up infiltration basins along with monitoring wells exceeds
the benefits.

Discharge to Other Systems

Portions of the Columbia and Hopkins service area is being transferred to this plant via prior
SCDHEC permits and has been agreed upon by all parties. There are no available discharge options
for the additional flow that would not be cost prohibitive.

SUMMARY

The County has utilized environmentally beneficial methods of disposal of treated wastewater
since its beginning and will continue to pursue methods of disposal that reduce the discharge to
surface water streams. In the meantime, the discharge to the Wateree River will reduce
contaminant loading to the maximum extent possible at a minimum meeting the UOD
requirements as specified in the NPDES discharge permit.



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

4.1

4.2

421

422

4.2.21

4222

4223

SECTION 4
NUTRIENT EVALUATION

GENERAL

The Eastover WWTP has a phosphorus limit that requires advanced treatment. Information was
requested from DHEC and the total loading for phosphorus allowed in the effluent from the
WWTP is 8.23 Ibs,/day. Based on a plant capacity of 1.2 MGD, the phosphorus performance goal
would be 0.82 mg/L. Meeting this phosphorus goal will require the addition of a coagulant to
precipitate the phosphorus. It will also be a concern for the removal and wasting of sludge and the
return of any decant of the sludge basins, not to enhance the phosphorus loading on the plant.

NUTRIENT EVALUATION

The nutrient evaluation will review the increase in any nutrient loading, specifically phosphorus,
at the plant. This will include the waste load allocation and reasonable alternatives for the
phosphorus concern.

A report was prepared by Joel E. Wood & Associates for Mr. Bill Davis, P.E., Director of Richland
County Utilities in September 2020 that reviewed the phosphorus loading options. Assistance was
provided for this evaluation by Jeff deBessonet with WEC.

Waste Load Allocation

A waste load allocation was performed on the discharge to the Wateree River at a volume of 0.75
MGD. The parameter of most concern is phosphorous. SCDHEC maintained the 7.09 lbs/day
loading cap with the proposed expansion, however they also calculated an additional 1.14 Ibs/day
due to closing smaller plants in the Hopkins area. This makes the new loading cap 8.23 lbs/day.
Appendix B includes the WLA provided by SCDHEC.

Reasonable Alternatives

Below are reasonable alternatives to resolve the phosphorus concern. These alternatives include
sharing the load with the County’s Broad River plant, sharing the load with other surrounding
plants, pursue additional allocation from individual permittees, reallocation request via the
Central Midlands COG, and/or find a phosphorus offset via negotiation with other phosphorus
sources.

Sharing Load with the County’s Broad River Plant

The County could create flexibility in the combined loading already allocated. 69 Ibs/day along
with 8.23 1bs/day allows for a total of 77.23 Ibs/day. If the Eastover plant discharges more than 8.23
Ibs/day, but the combination with the Broad River discharge is under 77.23 lbs/day, Eastover
would be in compliance with their NPDES permit.

Sharing Load with Other Plants

This would involve creating interest in another utility in the Congaree or Wateree watershed to
have greater flexibility. If a neighboring facility saw the value of in the Lower Richland area
growing, they may want to create flexibility.

Pursue Additional Allocation for Individual Permittees
Since the County is taking an estimated 0.577 MGD from Columbia’s system, request that the City
transfer an equivalent amount of phosphorus loading. Negotiate a loading swap with another




EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

4224

4.2.25

43

facility that does not need the loading. The County may have other ways to help a permittee
outside its wastewater program.

Reallocation Request via the Central Midlands COG

Since SCDHEC started setting in place a phosphorus cap based on the size of each treatment
facility, the caps have taken place over a long period of time and do not reflect growth patterns and
needs in the Midlands area. The COG is the venue to ask for a reallocation of loading to balance
the economic impact across the region. This could be a complicated process because there would
be winners and losers as you reallocate. For the COG to embrace this, which could be resource
intensive, they would likely want to see the critical problem the County is facing. This is likely a
long-term process. However, the County needs to be concerned with getting stuck with tight
limits for the next many years with no certainty of relief.

Find a Phosphorus Offset via Negotiation with Other Phosphorus Sources

This can be a broad and complicated process but long-term, may be cost effective. MS4 programs
or traditional non-point sources may implement best management practices that could reduce
phosphorus loading in the Congaree/Wateree watershed. However, unlike the known wastewater
discharges, regulated via permits, finding an offset is not a simple matter. It would likely involve
water quality modeling as a predictive tool and a conservative loading cut estimate to be
considered. Whether working with the agricultural community or the County’s MS4 program,
negotiating stormwater related cuts may produce value for Eastover and the Broad River plants.

SUMMARY

The treatment plant can reduce phosphorus to the 0.82 mg/L level with the use of a coagulant
provided the sludge wasting and sludge digesting processes are closely monitored to reduce the
return of phosphorus to the headworks of the treatment plant in the decanting operation form the
digester. Also, of a concern is the methodology for the dewatering and disposing of the digested
sludge. Land application of the liquid sludge would be preferred at this rate in order to reduce the
possibility of dewatering onsite and returning decant with high phosphorus loading to the
headworks of the treatment plant.

10



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

51

5.2

521

522

523

524

SECTION 5
PROPOSED WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY EXPANSION

GENERAL

The treatment plant is being expanded to a capacity of 1.2 MGD. Appendix A provides the design
calculations using the proposed increased flow. The description below will indicate the
improvements required to increase the capacity.

PROPOSED WASTEWATER TREATMENT EXPANSION

Headworks
In order to process 1.2 MGD, the existing 22.5 degree V-notch weirs will be replaced with 45
degree V-notch weirs.

Anaerobic Basins and Oxidation Ditches

Before increased flow is introduced, all mixing and aeration equipment will be serviced by the
manufacturer to ensure the equipment is operating at required performance levels. A mixer guide
rail will be installed on Anaerobic Basin #1 and mixers will be installed on three of the four
anaerobic basins. A mixer will also be installed in Oxidation Basin #2. A Davits Crane will be
installed with each mixer. The automatic dissolved oxygen control system in the oxidation ditches
will be replaced.

The overall detention time in the oxidation and anoxic zones is 22 hours based on the increased
flow of 1.2 MGD. The design capacity is adequate for the treatment limits proposed in the current
NPDES permit. Supplemental aeration may be required to maintain DO levels within the basin
based on the design and location of the existing vertical aeration system.

Clarifiers and Digester

The existing clarifier equipment should be evaluated by the manufacturer prior to introduction of
additional flow. Maintenance such as painting should be performed prior to expanding capacity.
The existing clarifiers have a combined surface area of 3,926 SE. Using a design flow of 1.2 MGD,
the loading rate is 305 GPD/SE.

The floating decanter in the digester is in disrepair with a leak in the draw off hose. The decanter
pump will also need to be repaired as it has a crack in the volute of the pump. The existing digester
has a maximum volume of 161,568 gallons. The wasting rate at 1.2 MGD would be approximately
39,500 GPD at a concentration of 8,000 mg/L. Thickening the sludge to a concentration of 2%
would reduce the sludge volume to provide approximately 10 days of digester storage available.
With plant capacity at 1.2 MGD, additional digester storage may be required. For the short-term,
pumping and hauling of waste will be conducted.

Chlorine Contact System

The gate valves at the head of each chamber will be replaced as well as the effluent pump pipe
coupling. Based on information provided by the surveyor, the existing chlorine contact basin has
adequate capacity for 1.2 MGD. The basin also has redundant chambers for maintenance.

11



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

525

5.2.6

Instrumentation and Testing

The existing instrumentation should be upgraded at this time to ensure proper flow measurement
through the treatment process, including return and waste sludge and to monitor the effluent
discharge from the treatment plant. A permanent refrigerated sampler needs to be installed too. By
increasing the flow above 1 MGD, the new NPDES permit will require a core mix analysis and
toxicity testing.

Nutrient Loading

The treatment plant can reduce phosphorus to the 0.82 mg/L level with the use of a coagulant
provided the sludge wasting and sludge digesting processes are closely monitored to reduce the
return of phosphorus to the headworks of the treatment plant in the decanting operation form the
digester. This coagulant will be used only on a needed basis. Also, of a concern is the methodology
for the dewatering and disposing of the digested sludge. Land application of the liquid sludge
would be preferred at this rate in order to reduce the possibility of dewatering onsite and returning
decant with high phosphorus loading to the headworks of the treatment plant. The phosphorus
concentration limit, currently set at 1.13 mg/L, is expected to be set at 2 mg/L, consistent with other
facilities, to provide flexibility.

12



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

APPENDIX A
DESIGN CALCULATIONS



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

MARCH 2021
WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet Page10f 6
Project: Lower Richland (Eastover) WWTP 29-0Oct-20
MBD No.: 320011 Directory: C:\Users\spollard\OneDrive - MBD Consulting

Engineers\Documents),

Reference: "Wastewater Engineering Treatment, Disposal, and Reuse" Metcalf and Eddy, Inc.
LEGEND
|| = data that is input into spreadsheet = values calculated by spreadsheet

NARRATIVE

WASTEWATER FLOWS and DESIGN CONDITIONS

Influent Effluent

Peak Flow
Design Flow
Start-up Flow
BOD(5)

TSS

TKN

NH3-N

Max. Temp.
Site Elevation
Temperature Correction g 1.024
Saturation D.O. @ Temp., Elev. Cst. 7.99 mg/l

mg/1 |:
mg/l 2
mg/l

DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS

MLSS

Start-up MLSS

RAS / WAS Conc,

a Transfer Alpha Value
b Transfer Beta Value

| mg/1
mg/1
o | mg/l

MCRT “15] days
Cw - Operating oxygen concentration in ww 52 o |mg/1
Cs - oxygen saturation tap water @ field conditions 9.07 mg/l
Cs20 - oxygen saturation tap water @ 20 C 10,78

Tw- wastewater temperature max 27.00 C

1b BOD(5)/1,000¢f Aeration Vol.
Sludge Yield (Ib TSS,/1b BOD5 destroyed) 0.65
Volatile S8 Fraction (MLVSS/MLSS) 0.8

d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WWTP



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

MARCH 2021
WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet Page 2 of 6
RATE COEFFICIENTS
Ib Oxygen/1b BOD(5) applied 1.30
b Oxygen/Ib NH3-N applied 4.60
HP COEFFICIENTS
Ib O2/BHP-Hr. 3.00 7.8
BHP/ 1,000 CF 0.50 1.5
FORMULAS
Sludge Age (days) = Suspended Solids in Aeration

Suspended Solids to Aeration
(Formulas, cont.)

MLSS (mg/1) = Desired Suspended Solids in Aeration
Weight of Water in Aeration

MCRT (days) = Suspended Solids in Aeration
S8 in WAS + S5 in Effluent

BOD to Aeration
MLVSS in Aeration

Food to Microorganism Ratio

COMBULTING
FRGIMEE S B

d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WWTP



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

MARCH 2021
WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet Page 3 of 6
AERATION BASIN SIZING
CALCULATED PARAMETERS
1. BOD (5) Destroyed = MGD x (8.34 Ib/gal.) (Influent BOD (mg/1) - Effluent BOD (mg,/1))
@ Peak Flow = 4,878.90 Ih./day
@  Design Flow N T
@ Start-up Flow = 1,301.04 1b./day
2. NH3-N Destroyed = MGD x (8.34 Ib/gal.) (Influent TKN (mg/1) - Effluent NH3-N (mg/1))
@ Peak Flow B 975.78 1b./day
@ Design Flow = lh.{day
@ Start-up Flow = 260.21 lb./day
3. Actual O2 Transfer Rate = (1.50 x BOD(d)) + (4.60 x NH3-N(d))
@ Peak Flow = 10,831.16 Ib./day
@  Design Flow - Taswaslb/in
@ Start-up Flow = 2.888.31 1Ib./day
(Tw - 20)
4. Standard O2 Transfer Rate = AOTR x Theta
Alpha x (Transfer Beta x C(st)) - Co)
C(z20)
@ Peak Flow = 19,083.73 1b./day
@ Design Flow : Ib./day
@ Start-up Flow = 5.328.99 1b./day
5. Aeration Volume (@ 15.6 Ib. BOD(5) / 1,000¢cf) = BOD(d)*(1,000 cf /15 Ib BOD({d)}*(7.48 gal./cf)
@ Peak Flow = 2,432,045 gal.
@  Design Flow N
@ Start-up Flow = 648,785 gal.
Detention Time = Aeration Volume / Design Flow x (24 hrs. / day)
@ Design Flow = hrs.
6. System Mass = BOD(d) x MCRT x (Ib TSS / Ib BOD{d))
= [__19,028]h.
7. Aeration Volume @ System Mass = System Mass / (8.34 1b. / gal.)
MLSS
- [oosslul
Detention Time = Aeration Volume / Design Flow x (24 hrs. / day)
@  Design Flow E [ i5zilhrs.

] :
d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WW'TP B UL



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet Page 4 of &

SELECTED REACTOR BASIN VOLUME - gal.

Detention Time = Aeration Volume / Design Flow x (24 hrs. / day)
@  Design Flow B [___20.35]hrs.
8. Horsepower Required = SOTR. / (Ib Oz / BHP-hr) [ 24 hrs.
@  DesignHow - —
9. Food / Mass Ratio = BOD(d) / (MLSS x 0.65 x (8.34 Ib. / gal.) x Aeration Volume)
@ Design Flow =
10. WAS Rate = 55 in Aeration - Effluent 8§

WAS cone. x MCRT
= (Aer. Vol. x MLSS cone. x (8.34 lb/gal.}) - (WW Flow x Effluent S8 cone. x (8.34 1b./gal). x MCRT)

WAS conc. x (8.34 1b./gal.) x MCRT
gal /day

39,000 gal./day

@ Design Flow
@ Start-up Flow

d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WWTP



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet
CLARIFIER EVALUATION
DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS
Design Flow Peak
Design Sludge Return Rate 2.4 mgd
Design Flow MLSS 3,000 mg/l
# of Units 5]
Sidewater Depth | ft.
Design Surface Loading Rate | gpd/sf
Design Solids Loading Rate | 1b/day/sf 50 lb/day/sf
Design Weir Overflow Rate b epd/If
Design Detention Time hrs.
CALCULATED PARAMETERS
1. Diameter Required
a. Surface Loading Basis: Area = Design Flow / Surface Loading Rate / 2units
== 3428.57 sf
Dia.=  Square root of ((Area / Pi) x 4)
- [eeant.
b. Solids Loading Basis: Area=  (Design Flow x MLSS x( 8.34 Ib./gal.)) / (30 Ib./day/sf) / 2units
= 1,000.80 sf
Dia.=  Square root of ((Area / Pi) x 4)
N ]
c.Weir Overflow Basis Weir Length = Design Flow / Weir Overflow Rate / 2 units
= 96 ft.
Dia.=  Weir Length / Pi
= [30s56]f
d. Detention Time Basis Area = Design Flow x Detention Time

(7.48 gal./ef) x SWD x 2 units

2228.16

Dia.=  Square root of ((Area / Pi) x 4)

d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WWTP

Page50f 6



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

WWTP Design Calculation Spreadsheet

SELECTED CLARIFIER DIAMETER -

Flow / Area [ # Units

63.04 gpd/sf 1527.887
— e

203.72 gpd/sf 407.4367

2. Surface Loading Rates
@ Peak Flow
@ Design Flow
@ Start-up Flow

(Flow x MLSS x (8.34 lb./gal.)) / Area / Units

19.11 Ib/day/sf 3B.22774
[ seoalb/dayst 4587329

20.39 lb/day/sf 40.77626

3. Solids Loading Rates

@ Peak Flow
@ Design Flow + RAS
@ Start-up Flow + RAS

4. Weir Overflow Rate = Flow / Weir Length / # Units
@ Peak Flow = 9549.30 gpd/If 19098.59
@ Design Flow = gpd/1f 7639.437
@ Start-up Flow = 2546.48 gpd/1f 5092.958

Area x SWD x (7.48 gal./ef) x (24 hrs./day) x # Units

n

5. Detention Time

Page 6 of 6

Flow (gpd)
@ Peak Flow = 2.82 hrs.
@ Design Flow = hrs.
@ Start-up Flow = 10.57 hrs.

d-eastover wwip design cales.10.29.2020 Eastover WWTP




EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

APPENDIX B
WASTELOAD ALLOCATION



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

Wahec

September 2, 2020

Joel E, Wood, P.E.

Joel E Wood & Associates, LLC
2bUklbert Highway

York, $C29745

RE: Wasteload Allocation
Proposed Richland County/Eastover WWTP's Expansion
NPDES Permit No. SC0047911
Richland, SC

Dear Mr. Wood:

At your request, preliminary wasteload allocations have been obtained for Richland County/Eastover’s proposed - - —
1.2 MGD and 2.5 MGD discharge to the Wateree Riverat facility’s existing outfall location. Commented [ms1]: Enter the flow for which the WLA b
developed

The following NPDES permit limits may be expected to be as follows (these are generally monthly average values
unless noted, additional limits with weekly average and daily maximum concentrations may also be included}):

[ Existing Discharge Proposed Limitswithaut existing Town of
Ridgeway Discharge |

Flow, MGD 075 12 2.5

80D mig/l 30 30 10

T55, mg /I 30 30 30

NHy N, mg/i 20 20 20

TRC, mg/! 0.5/1.0 0.5/10 0.5/10

Dissolved Oxygen, mg/! ¢ 20! 2.0

E. Cali, (100ml 126/349 126/343 126/343

UOD, Ibs/d - Critical 853.2% Ay

Total Nitrogen MR MR MA

Total Phosphorus 113 mg/1 (7.09 Ibs/d 8.23Ibs/d 8.23 Ibs/d

Total Phasphorus = Manthly
Loading

Ta be determined’

To be determined’

To be determined?

Total Phasphorus — Annual
Loading

To be determined*

To be determined?

To be determined?

Whale Effluent Taxicity Chronic
Test

CTC=2.8%"

CTC = 100%*

CTC = 100%*

Pollutants in Part D, Form 24
“Expanded Effluent Testing Data”

Testing Data needs to
be submitted with
MPDES application®

Testing Data needs to
b submitted with
NPDES application®

! Minimum at all times.

i See note in the WLA

¥ See nate In the WLA

* Toxicity test concentrations can be changed subject to a Mixing Zone Evaluation.

*Reasonable patential has yet been evaluated since sampling data is not available for these future Discharge.



EASTOVER WWTP EXPANSION TO 1.2 MGD
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT
MARCH 2021

The following conditions should be nated. The wasteload is infarmational anly until the following actions aceur:

1

A determination whether the project Is consistent with the applicable 208 Water Quality Plan must be made
on the proposed expansions during the NPDES permit process.

In situations where a permittee proposes a new or expanded discharge into surface waters whose quality
is greater than water quality stendards (i.e., higher quality waters), an alternatives analysis shall be included
in the engineering report. The report should also show that the proposal is necessary to important social
and economic development in the area of the receiving waters such that the discharge should be zllowed
under the anti-degradation provisions of Regulation 61-68 (Water Quality Standards). The alternatives
analysis shall demonstrate that none of the following applicable alternatives are economically and
technologically reasonable:

{a) Reuse that would minimize or eliminate the need to lower water quality;

{b) Use of other discharge locations;

(3] Connection to other wastewater treatment facilities;

(d} Use of land application;

(e) Product or raw material substitution; and

3] Any other treatment option or alternative, which would minimize or eliminate the need to lower

water guality.

An NPDES permit application and preliminary engineering report is provided on the proposed expansion.
Please note that the NPDES permitting action must be completed in accordance with Regulation 61-9, and
no appeals filed, before a Construction Permit could be considerad for this project.

Additional metals testing and/or requirements may be necessary subject to information provided with the
NPDES application and/or PER. Submission of available effluent metals data may result in specific poliutants
to be added or deleted from the limits.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (803} 898-4228 or at greenba@dhec.sc.gov or
Weijia Hu at (803) B98-4256 or at huw@dhec.sc.gov

Sincerely,

Brenda Green, Manager
Domestic Wastewater Permitting Section
Bureau of Water

cc:

Veronica Barringer, EA Central Midlands Region — BEHS Columbia

Shawn M Clarke, Director, Water Facilities Permitting Division

Wade Cantrell, Water Quality Modeling Section

Susan Waldner, Water Quality Modeling Section

Weijia Hu, Domestic Wastewater Permitting Section (w/original attachment)



% ydhec

Healthy Peoplk
BUREAU OF WATER

October 5, 2021

Joseph McGougan, P.A.
MBD Consulting Engineers
911 Norman Alley
Conway, SC 29526

RE: PER APPROVAL LETTER: LOA-005991
RICHLAND CO EASTOVER REG WWTP/Eastover WWTP Expansion to 1.2 PER
NPDES PERMIT NO. SC0047911
RICHLAND COUNTY

Dear Joseph McGougan:

This Department has completed the review of the above referenced Preliminary Engineering Report
(PER) that was submitted on April 29, 2021, to expand the Richland Co/Eastover Reg WWTP from
0.75 MGD to 1.20 MGD. The Department hereby conceptually approves the PER.

This Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) approval is valid for six (6) months from the date of this
letter. Plans and specifications consistent with the approved PER must be submitted during this
period. Approval of the PER does not guarantee that a SCDHEC Construction Permit will be issued
for the project. This approval does not affect, modify, or extend any existing Schedule of
Compliance of Enforcement Schedule, which may be in effect. This Agency reserves the right to re-
evaluate and/or require modifications to any approved PER after this six (6) month period.

This PER approval is valid from the effective date October 5, 2021 to the expiration date March 7,
2021. Any request for an extension shall be submitted through ePermitting 15 days prior to the
expiration date and approved by the Department. Justification of the need for the extension shall
be included with the request.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at 803-898-1904 or
foulkstn@dhec.sc.gov.

Sincerely,

T Frck—
Tyra N. Foulks
Domestic Wastewater Permitting Section

Water Facilities Permitting Division

S.C Departiment of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street, Columbia, SC 29201 (803) 898-3432 www scdhecgov



Richland Co/Eastover Reg WWTP Expansion
LOA-005991
Page2
Attachments: Wasteload Allocation Worksheet

cc: Brenda A. Green, Manager, BOW
Shawn M. Clarke, Director, Water Facilities Permitting Division
Wiejia Hu, Domestic Wastewater permitting section
Wade Cantrell, 303d Modeling TMDL Section Manager, BOW
Susan Waldner, Water Quality Modeling Section
Steven M. Pollard, MB Consulting Engineers, P.A.
BOW/WPC Enforcement

5.C Department of Heall id Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street, Columbia, SC 29201 (803) 898-3432 www.scdhec.gov



S.C. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
BUREAU OF WATER
DIVISION OF WATER QUALITY
WATER QUALITY MODELING SECTION

WASTELOAD ALLOCATION WORKSHEET AND COORDINATION FORM

Date: 6/24/2020 Engineer: Weijia Hu WLA Type: Proposal
Discharger: Richland Co/Eastover Regional WWTP NPDES: SC0047911
County: Richland WMU: 0301 HUC: 03050104-04
Receiving waters: Wateree River On 303(d) list? yes

I. Water Quality Modeling Section
A. Model Data:
Model used: QualZe

Name: LWATILIN

USGS station / site: 02148000, 02148315

Unit 7Q10 (cfs/mi?); -

Stream critical flow (cfs): 1201* Critical flow type: 7Q10
Avg. annual flow (cfs): 5932**

Drainage area (mi®): 5590

Stream Q: waste Q ratio: 1:0.001546
Temp critical (F/C): 84.7/29.28***
Temp seasonal (F/C): 58.3/14.61***
Velocity (ft/s): 0.75 - 1.45

Slope (ft/mi): ---

K1 (d™h: 0.06

K2 (d"):0.14-2.18

K3 (d": 0.1

F ratio: 1.78:1 (weighted average. some industrial effluent expected)

Stream characteristics: *critical flow is the difference between 7010 at USGS

02148315 and 02148000 plus FERC flow from dam [(975¢cfs - 574cfs) + 800]

** AAQ from USGS 02148000, ***temps from model (reach 9. element 1).

B. Model Input Sources :
Waters in question? yes Literature: DHEC/EPA Agreement
Similar waters:
Field data available? good




Describe field data: USGS 02148000, 02148315, CW-206, CW-222, C-007

C. Model Validity:
Intensive survey? ves

Calibrated? ves

Verified? yes

Analyst’s assessment of simulation: good
Comments: model based on lwateree.in

D. Model Outputs:
Ammonia model: chronic toxicity (mg/l): 993.8 critical, 2722.9 seasonal

Dissolved oxygen model:

Critical BODS (mg/1): 30

Critical NH3-N (mg/1): 20

Effluent DO (mg/1): 2.0

Equivalent UOD: ---

UOD formula: ---

Predicted minimum instream DO (mg/1): 5.46
Effluent flow (mgd/cfs): 1.2 /1.857

Other parameters: TP 7.09 #/dav*, MR TN

Comments: *No net increase in phosphorus loading is allowed due to the TP
impairment in Lake Marion. Additional TP loading may be reallocated from
existing facilities or available from facilities eliminated/consolidated as a
result of this expansion. The amount will depend on their previous

performance.

E. Have studies been conducted or is information available which would have an
influence on the level of wastewater treatment needed? no If yes, attach comments.

F. Stream Classification: FW

G. Could the discharge be considered a wetland discharge? no If yes, attach comments
from WQ Certification and Wetland Programs Section as needed.

H. Will the proposed discharge and recommended limits protect the existing uses of the
waterbody? yes If no, attach a detailed explanation.

I. Is there evidence that the practical use of the stream is different from its classified use
and may warrant alternate consideration? no If yes, attach comments.



J. Is there reason to believe that questionable benefits will result from requiring model
recommendations? no If yes, attach comments,

Analyst: Susan Waldner Date: 6/24/2020
Reviewer: ’:;//i )-"“’-f";ff",:“ e Date: Z/ = 2//2;0 )

=3
[1. Engineering Section

A. Do the model outputs exceed established technological limits for this type of
wastewater? Yes - No If yes, explain below in the space provided.

B. Are there factors which make the model outputs inconsistent with best
engineering judgment and/or federal effluent guidelines? Yes - No. If yes,
explain below in the space provided.

C. Are there other factors which would make the WLA either more stringent or
fess stringent? Yes - No. If yes, explain below in the space provided.

D. Are there factors that make the water quality model outputs impractical or un-
implementable at this time? Yes - No. If yes, explain below in the space

provided.

E. Recommended limits

Flow:

BODS critical: BODS seasonal:
NH3-N critical: NH3-N seasonal:
UOD critical: UOD seasonal:
Eftluent DO:

Phosphorus:

Other parameters:

Engineering comments:

F. Is there agreement with water quality model outputs?  Yes No

Engineer:

Date:




[II. Water Quality Modeling Section
Is full agreement concluded? Yes - No

If full agreement is not reached. see the wasteload allocation procedures for
further steps.

If yes, the wasteload allocation is:

Flow:

BODS critical: BODS seasonal:
NH3-N critical: NEH3-N seasonal:
UOD critical: : JOD seasonal:
Critical limits apply: through
Seasonal limits apply: through

Effluent DO:

Phosphorus:

Other parameters:

Comments:

Approval: Date:




SCDHEC Ammonia Toxicity Calculation

Based on 1999 EPA Water Quality Criteria for Ammonia as adopted by S.C. DHEC R.61-68
promulgated December 14, 2000, effective June 22, 2001.

Division of Water Quality
April 23, 2001, updated 10/05

Discharger Name: Richland County Eastover Regional WWTP 1.2 MGD
Permit Number: SC0047911

Receiving Stream: Wateree River

Date: 6/23/2020

Analyst: SW

Upstream Flow (cfs): 1208
Upstream Total Ammonia Concentration (mg N/L): 0.16
Critical Stream Temperature (deg. C): 29.28
Seasonal Stream Temperature (deg. C): 14.61
Stream pH: 7.5
Discharge Flow (mgd): 1.2
Are Salmonids Present? (yes/noj: no
Are Fish ELS Present? (yes/no): yes

Instream Total Ammonia Toxicity Results

Season: Critical Seasonal
Criterion Maximum Concentration, CMC (mg N/L): 19.890 19.890
Criterion Continuous Concentration, CCC (mg N/L): 1.685 4.338

Discharge Total Ammonia Results

Season: Critical Seasonal
Max. Conc. Protecting Against Acute Toxicity (mg N/L): 12857.11 12857.11
Max. Conc. Protecting Against Chronic Toxicity (mg N/L): 993.82 2722.94

Upstream flow, NH3N from lower wateree model (LWAT1.IN), element just upstream of discharge (9,1).
Temperatures from wateree model temp 2020.xIsx




	Full Board Meeting Notice 1.27.22
	Full Board Agenda 1.27.22
	Board Committee Minutes 12.09.2021
	Enclosure 2 - Adoption of the 2045 LRTP
	Enclosure 3 - CMCOG 2021 Final Issued Audit
	Enclosure 4 - FY 2021 Section 5307 Authorization Request to FTA, SWRTA, & CMRTA
	Enclosure 5 - FY 2021 Section 5339 Authorization Request to FTA, SWRTA, & CMRTA
	Enclosure 6 - Adoption of the 2021 CMP
	Enclosure 7 Board Enclosure RCU Eastover WWTP
	Board Memo Attachments.pdf
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21.pdf
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Cover
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Body

	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21.pdf
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Cover
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Body

	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 (1).pdf
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Cover
	Eastover WWTP PER 04.08.21 Body






